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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                  to

Commission File Number 001-15283
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DineEquity, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 95-3038279
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or

organization)
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

450 North Brand Boulevard,
Glendale, California 91203-1903

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(818) 240-6055
(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was Required to submit and post such files).  Yes o  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check
one):

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o  No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class Outstanding as of July 24, 2009
Common Stock, $.01 par value 17,597,734
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.  Financial Statements.

DINEEQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

June 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
(Unaudited)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,370 $ 114,443
Restricted cash 68,514 83,355
Short-term investments, at market value 279 276
Receivables, net 81,595 117,930
Inventories 11,839 10,959
Prepaid income taxes � 15,734
Prepaid expenses 16,660 17,067
Deferred income taxes 27,249 27,504
Assets held for sale 6,326 11,861
Total current assets 292,832 399,129
Non-current restricted cash 50,937 53,395
Restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary 4,590 5,573
Long-term receivables 268,037 277,106
Property and equipment, net 805,137 824,482
Goodwill 697,470 697,470
Other intangible assets, net 949,507 956,036
Other assets, net 139,423 148,026
Total assets $ 3,207,933 $ 3,361,217

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 20,100 $ 15,000
Accounts payable 33,527 48,983
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 31,682 44,299
Deferred revenue 50,278 95,532
Accrued financing costs � 20,071
Other accrued expenses 63,473 55,249
Accrued interest payable 3,391 3,580
Total current liabilities 202,451 282,714
Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,718,473 1,853,367
Financing obligations, less current maturities 318,938 318,651
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Capital lease obligations, less current maturities 157,470 161,310
Deferred income taxes 402,832 395,448
Other liabilities 117,488 119,910
Total liabilities 2,917,652 3,131,400

Commitments and contingencies
Preferred stock, Series A, $1 par value, 220,000 shares authorized; 190,000 shares
issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 187,050 187,050
Stockholders� equity:
Convertible preferred stock, Series B, at accreted value, 10,000,000 shares authorized;
35,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 38,461 37,332
Common stock, $.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized; June 30, 2009:
23,810,117 shares issued and 17,594,551 shares outstanding; December 31, 2008:
23,696,950 shares issued and 17,466,355 shares outstanding 238 237
Additional paid-in-capital 168,435 165,315
Retained earnings 197,136 145,810
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (25,289 ) (29,408 )
Treasury stock, at cost (June 30, 2009: 6,215,566 shares; December 31, 2008: 6,230,595
shares) (275,750 ) (276,519 )
Total stockholders� equity 103,231 42,767

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 3,207,933 $ 3,361,217

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DINEEQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues
Franchise revenues $ 90,514 $ 87,421 $ 188,724 $ 177,355
Company restaurant sales 222,268 296,496 461,792 608,418
Rental revenues 32,544 32,568 66,253 65,533
Financing revenues 4,324 7,648 8,437 15,616
Total revenues 349,650 424,133 725,206 866,922
Costs and Expenses
Franchise expenses 23,736 22,384 52,034 45,761
Company restaurant expenses 192,181 259,742 394,037 536,317
Rental expenses 24,275 24,561 48,817 49,270
Financing expenses 339 2,548 346 5,887
General and administrative expenses 33,959 49,230 81,118 96,834
Interest expense 45,970 51,561 94,380 102,208
Impairment and closure charges 2,352 41,203 2,001 41,432
Amortization of intangible assets 3,018 3,080 6,037 5,979
Gain on extinguishment of debt (12,449 ) � (38,803 ) �
(Gain) loss on disposition of assets (5 ) 20 (5,142 ) (158 )
Other (income) expense, net (94 ) 26 129 (1,724 )
Total costs and expenses 313,282 454,355 634,954 881,806
Income (loss) before income taxes 36,368 (30,222 ) 90,252 (14,884 )
(Provision) benefit for income taxes (11,554 ) 10,837 (28,297 ) 9,353
Net income (loss) $ 24,814 $ (19,385 ) $ 61,955 $ (5,531 )
Net income (loss) $ 24,814 $ (19,385 ) $ 61,955 $ (5,531 )
Less: Series A preferred stock dividends (4,750 ) (4,750 ) (9,500 ) (9,500 )
Less: Accretion of Series B preferred stock (569 ) (535 ) (1,129 ) (1,056 )
Less: Net (income) loss allocated to unvested
participating restricted stock (719 ) 930 (1,916 ) 539
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders $ 18,776 $ (23,740 ) $ 49,410 $ (15,548 )
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders per share
Basic $ 1.11 $ (1.42 ) $ 2.93 $ (0.93 )
Diluted $ 1.09 $ (1.42 ) $ 2.87 $ (0.93 )
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 16,929 16,768 16,886 16,735
Diluted 17,845 16,768 17,625 16,735
Dividends declared per common share $ � $ 0.25 $ � $ 0.50
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Dividends paid per common share $ � $ 0.25 $ � $ 0.50

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DINEEQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 61,955 $ (5,531 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flows provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 51,662 55,369
Gain on extinguishment of debt (38,803 ) �
Impairment and closure charges 2,001 41,432
Deferred income taxes 4,845 (38,420 )
Stock-based compensation expense 5,277 7,057
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 376 945
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised (41 ) (315 )
Gain on disposition of assets (5,142 ) (158 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables 35,384 28,336
Inventories (1,009 ) (43 )
Prepaid expenses 6,070 26,090
Accounts payable (13,931 ) (27,007 )
Accrued employee compensation and benefits (12,617 ) (10,586 )
Deferred revenues (45,254 ) (33,632 )
Other accrued expenses 14,328 12,439
Other (3,620 ) 840
Cash flows provided by operating activities 61,481 56,816
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipment (5,899 ) (23,216 )
Reductions (additions) to long-term receivables 1,029 (1,573 )
Payment of accrued acquisition costs � (10,063 )
Collateral released by captive insurance subsidiary 983 3,823
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment and assets held for sale 11,260 11,930
Principal receipts from notes and equipment contracts receivable 8,206 7,871
Other (87 ) 478
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 15,492 (10,750 )
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 10,000 �
Proceeds from financing obligations � 333,617
Repayment of long-term debt (101,701 ) (312,800 )
Principal payments on capital lease and financing obligations (7,047 ) (3,167 )
Dividends paid (9,500 ) (15,115 )
Payment of preferred stock issuance costs � (1,500 )
Repurchase of restricted stock (287 ) (380 )
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Reissuance of treasury stock � 1,135
Proceeds from stock options exercised 308 989
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised 41 315
Payment of accrued debt issuance costs (20,030 ) (24,299 )
Payment of early debt extinguishment costs (123 ) �
Restricted cash related to securitization 17,293 (13,666 )
Cash flows used in financing activities (111,046 ) (34,871 )
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (34,073 ) 11,195
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 114,443 26,838
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 80,370 $ 38,033
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ 84,677 $ 100,924
Income taxes paid $ 12,598 $ 12,514

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DINEEQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. General

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of DineEquity, Inc. (the �Company�) have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (�U.S. GAAP�) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10
of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial
statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation
have been included. Operating results for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2009.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008 has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date but does
not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included
in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

2. Basis of Presentation

The Company�s fiscal quarters end on the Sunday closest to the last day of each quarter. For convenience, the fiscal quarters are reported as
ending on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31. The first and second fiscal quarters of 2009 ended March 29 and June 28,
respectively; the first and second fiscal quarters of 2008 ended March 30 and June 29, respectively.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries that are consolidated in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. However, the subsidiaries have
not guaranteed the obligations of the Company, and the assets of the subsidiaries generally are not available to pay creditors of the Company.
Also, the Company has not guaranteed the obligations of the subsidiaries, and the assets of the Company generally are not available to pay
creditors of the subsidiaries.

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

11



The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company�s management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its
estimates, including those related to provisions for doubtful accounts, legal contingencies, income taxes, long-lived assets, goodwill and
intangible assets. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Subsequent events have been evaluated through July 30, 2009, the date
the financial statements are considered issued.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year information to conform to the current year presentation. The most significant
reclassification relates to certain operations acquired with Applebee�s International, Inc. (�Applebee�s�), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, that were previously reported as discontinued operations. The losses from discontinued operations of $114,000 and $202,000,
respectively, for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008, previously reported as a single net line item have been reclassified as
follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2008

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008

(In thousands)
Company restaurant expenses $ 19 $ 48
Loss on disposition of assets 49 8
Impairment and closure charges 123 277
Income (loss) before income taxes (191 ) (333 )
Benefit for income taxes 77 131
Net income (loss) $ (114 ) $ (202 )

These reclassifications had no effect on the net income or financial position previously reported.

5
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3. Accounting Policies

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (�SFAS 157�). In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement
No. 157, which delayed for one year the applicability of SFAS 157�s fair-value measurements to certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. The
Company adopted the requirements of SFAS 157 that had been deferred under FSP 157-2 on January 1, 2009. The adoption did not have a
material impact on the Company�s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (�SFAS 141(R)�). SFAS 141(R) establishes principles
and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SFAS 141(R) also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the
evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2008. The Company adopted SFAS 141(R) on January 1, 2009 and will apply the provisions of this statement prospectively.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (�SFAS 161�). This statement
requires companies to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why they use derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and its related
interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company�s financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows. The Company adopted the new disclosure requirements on January 1, 2009. As SFAS 161 does not change current accounting
practice, there was no impact of the adoption to the Company�s results of operations and financial condition..

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets (�FSP FAS 142-3�). FSP FAS 142-3
amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (�SFAS 142�). The intent of FSP FAS 142-3 is to improve the
consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the
fair value of the asset under SFAS 141(R) and other applicable accounting literature. The Company adopted FSP FAS 142-3 on January 1, 2009
and will apply the provisions of this statement prospectively to intangible assets acquired after the effective date.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF Issue No. 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions
Are Participating Securities (�FSP EITF 03-6-1�). FSP EITF 03-6-1 requires unvested share-based payment awards that contain rights to receive
non-forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents to be included in the two-class method of computing earnings per share as described in SFAS
No. 128, Earnings per Share. The Company retroactively adopted FSP EITF 03-6-1 on January 1, 2009. The impact of the adoption on earnings
per share as previously reported for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008 was not material.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, and FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, to address concerns
regarding (1) determining whether a market is not active and a transaction is not orderly, (2) recognition and presentation of
other-than-temporary impairments and (3) interim disclosures of fair values of financial instruments, respectively. The Company adopted these
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FSPs effective April 1, 2009. There was no impact of the adoption on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (�SFAS 165�). SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting for and
disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. The Company
adopted SFAS 165 effective April 1, 2009. There was no impact of the adoption on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140 (�SFAS
166�). SFAS 166 clarifies that the objective of paragraph 9 of Statement 140 is to determine whether a transferor and all of the entities included in
the transferor�s financial statements being presented have surrendered control over transferred financial assets; limits the circumstances in which
a financial asset, or portion of a financial asset, should be derecognized when the transferor has not transferred the entire original financial asset
to an entity that is not consolidated with the transferor in the financial statements being presented and/or when the transferor has continuing
involvement with the transferred financial asset; and removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity. The Company will be required
to adopt SFAS 166 effective January 1, 2010, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of SFAS 166 on its consolidated financial
statements.

6
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3. Accounting Policies, continued

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) (�SFAS 167�). SFAS 167 amends existing U.S.
GAAP with respect to the consolidation of variable interest entities (�VIEs�). Among other things, SFAS 167 (i) amends existing guidance for
determining whether an entity is a VIE; (ii) requires ongoing reassessments of whether an entity is the primary beneficiary of a VIE; and
(iii) requires enhanced disclosures about an entity�s involvement in a VIE. The Company will be required to adopt SFAS 167 effective January 1,
2010, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of SFAS 167 on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009 the FASB issued statement No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.  This statement replaces Statement No. 162 and establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification� (Codification)
as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP.  Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under
authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative U.S. GAAP for SEC registrants.  All guidance contained in the Codification
carries an equal level of authority.  This statement becomes effective for the Company for the third fiscal quarter of 2009.  The Company does
not expect that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on the Company�s financial statements.

4. Impairment and Closure Charges

The Company assesses long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets
may not be recoverable. For the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company recognized impairment charges of $1.9 million and closure
charges of $0.1 million. The charges related primarily to leasehold improvements and related assets of one IHOP restaurant closed during the
period and an additional write-down to the estimated sales value, based on a current letter of intent, of one Applebee�s restaurant that had been
closed in a prior period and was included in assets held for sale.

In May 2008, the Company entered into sale-leaseback transactions related to 181 parcels of real estate (land, buildings and improvements). Due
to continuing involvement of the Company with the subject properties, the transaction was recorded under the financing method in accordance
with U.S. GAAP covering sale-leaseback transactions involving real estate. The proceeds received by the Company from this transaction
established the fair value of the properties, which was less than the net book value of the real estate assets by approximately $41 million.
Accordingly, the Company has recognized an impairment loss of that amount in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three-month
and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008.

5. Assets Held for Sale

The Company classifies assets as held for sale and ceases the depreciation and amortization of the assets when there is a plan for disposal of the
assets and those assets meet the held for sale criteria as defined in applicable U.S. GAAP. The balance of assets held for sale at December 31,
2008 of $11.9 million was primarily comprised of seven Applebee�s company-operated restaurants in New Mexico expected to be franchised,
four parcels of land previously acquired and held for future development, and property and equipment from closed stores.
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The sale of five of the seven restaurants in New Mexico was completed in the first fiscal quarter of 2009.  During the second fiscal quarter of
2009 the Company sold certain property and equipment associated with closed restaurants and recognized an additional impairment on a
previously closed restaurant as discussed in Note 4, Impairment and Closure Charges. The balance of assets held for sale at June 30, 2009 of
$6.3 million was primarily comprised of two Applebee�s company-operated restaurants in New Mexico expected to be franchised (see Note 18,
Subsequent Events), four parcels of land previously acquired and held for future development, and property and equipment from closed
restaurants.

The following table summarizes the changes in the balance of assets held for sale during 2009:

(In millions)
Balance December 31, 2008 $ 11.9
Assets sold (4.7)
Impairment charges (1.0)
Assets reclassified to held for sale 0.1
Balance June 30, 2009 $ 6.3

7
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6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following components:

June 30, 2009
(unaudited)

December 31,
2008

(In millions)
Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due
December 2037, at a fixed rate of 7.1767% (inclusive of an insurance
premium of 0.75%) $ 600.7 $ 640.6
Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due
December 2037, at a fixed rate of 7.0588% 506.2 604.3
Series 2007-1 Class M-1 Fixed Rate Term Subordinated Notes due
December 2037, at a fixed rate of 8.4044% 111.5 119.0
Series 2007-1 Class A-1 Variable Funding Senior Notes, final maturity date
December 2037, at a rate of 2.98% and 3.86% as of June 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, respectively 100.0 100.0
Series 2007-1 Fixed Rate Notes due March 2037, at a fixed rate of 5.744%
(inclusive of an insurance premium of 0.60%) 175.0 175.0
Series 2007-2 Variable Funding Notes, final maturity date March 2037, at a
rate of 0.46% and 2.1% as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively 25.0 15.0
Series 2007-3 Fixed Rate Term Notes due December 2037, at a fixed rate of
7.0588% 245.0 245.0
Discount on Fixed Rate Notes (24.8 ) (30.5 )
Total debt 1,738.6 1,868.4
Less current maturities (20.1 ) (15.0 )
Long-term debt $ 1,718.5 $ 1,853.4

For a complete description of the respective instruments, refer to Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company retired Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due
December 2037 with a face amount of $94.0 million and Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due December 2037 with
a face amount of $35.2 million for cash payments totaling $85.4 million. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of this debt of
$38.8 million after the write-off of the discount and deferred financing costs related to the debt retired.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company received proceeds from disposition of assets and release of certain reserve funds
totaling $8.8 million. As required by the terms of the Applebee�s securitization agreements, these funds were used to retire Series 2007-1
Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes and Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes at face values of $4.1 million
and $4.7 million, respectively.
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In January 2009, the Company began making scheduled monthly payments on the Series 2007-1 Class M-1 Fixed Rate Term Subordinated
Notes due December 2037. Scheduled payments totaled $7.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2009.

8
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7. Financing Obligations

As of June 30, 2009, future minimum lease payments under financing obligations during the initial terms of the leases related to sale-leaseback
transactions are as follows:

Fiscal Years (In millions)
Remainder of 2009 $ 15.8
2010 32.0
2011 32.3
2012 32.4
2013 32.4
Thereafter 453.8
Total minimum lease payments 598.7
Less interest (271.6 )
Total financing obligations 327.1
Less current portion(1) (8.2 )
Long-term financing obligations $ 318.9

(1) Included in other accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheet.

8. Segments

The Company�s revenues and expenses are recorded in four segments: franchise operations, company restaurant operations, rental operations, and
financing operations.

As of June 30, 2009, the franchise operations segment consists of (i) 1,591 restaurants operated by Applebee�s franchisees in the United States,
14 countries outside the United States and one U.S. territory and (ii) 1,410 restaurants operated by IHOP franchisees and area licensees in the
United States, Canada and Mexico. Franchise operations revenue consists primarily of franchise royalty revenues, sales of proprietary products,
certain franchise advertising fees and the portion of the franchise fees allocated to intellectual property.  Franchise operations expenses include
advertising expense, the cost of proprietary products, pre-opening training expenses and costs related to intellectual property provided to certain
franchisees.

As of June 30, 2009, the company restaurant operations segment consists of 400 company-operated Applebee�s restaurants in the United States,
one company-operated Applebee�s restaurant in China and 11 company-operated IHOP restaurants. Company restaurant sales are retail sales at
company-operated restaurants. Company restaurant expenses are operating expenses at company-operated restaurants and include food, labor,
benefits, utilities, rent and other restaurant operating costs.

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

19



Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from direct financing leases. Rental operations expenses
are costs of operating leases and interest expense on capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants.

Financing operations revenue consists of the portion of franchise fees not allocated to intellectual property, sales of equipment and interest
income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases. Financing expenses are primarily the cost of restaurant equipment.

9
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8. Segments, continued

Information on segments is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008

(In millions)
Revenues from external
customers
Franchise operations $ 90.5 $ 87.4 $ 188.7 $ 177.4
Company restaurants 222.3 296.5 461.8 608.4
Rental operations 32.5 32.6 66.3 65.5
Financing operations 4.3 7.6 8.4 15.6
Total $ 349.6 $ 424.1 $ 725.2 $ 866.9
Interest expense
Company restaurants $ 0.2 $ 0.3 $ 0.5 $ 0.5
Rental operations 4.9 5.0 9.9 10.2
Corporate 46.0 51.6 94.4 102.2
Total $ 51.1 $ 56.9 $ 104.8 $ 112.9
Depreciation and amortization (1)
Franchise operations $ 2.5 $ 2.5 $ 5.0 $ 5.0
Company restaurants 7.5 8.5 14.8 20.2
Rental operations 2.9 3.0 5.8 6.0
Corporate 3.3 2.8 6.8 5.2
Total $ 16.2 $ 16.8 $ 32.4 $ 36.4
Income (loss) before income taxes
Franchise operations $ 66.8 $ 65.0 $ 136.7 $ 131.6
Company restaurants 30.1 36.8 67.8 72.1
Rental operations 8.3 8.0 17.4 16.3
Financing operations 4.0 5.1 8.1 9.7
Corporate (72.8) (145.1) (139.7) (244.6)
Total $ 36.4 $ (30.2) $ 90.3 $ (14.9)

(1) Excludes amortization included in interest expense

9. Income Taxes

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files Federal income tax returns and income tax returns in various state and foreign jurisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to Federal, state or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2004
for Federal returns and years before 2000 for other jurisdictions.

At June 30, 2009, the Company had a liability for unrecognized tax benefits including potential interest and penalties, net of related tax benefit,
totaling $18.4 million, of which approximately $1.9 million is expected to be paid within one year. For the remaining liability, due to the
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uncertainties related to these tax matters, the Company is unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate when cash settlement with a taxing
authority will occur.

The total unrecognized tax benefit as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was $12.4 million and $18.6 million, respectively, excluding
interest, penalties and related income tax benefits. The decrease was due primarily to settlements with taxing authorities resulting in a decrease
in unrecognized tax benefits related to prior year positions. The entire $12.4 million will be included in the Company�s effective income tax rate
if recognized. The Company estimates the unrecognized tax benefits may decrease over the upcoming 12 months by an amount up to
$1.5 million related to settlements with taxing authorities and the lapse of the statute of limitations.

As of June 30, 2009, the accrued interest and penalties were $13.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively, excluding any related income tax
benefits. As of December 31, 2008, the accrued interest and penalties were $13.7 million and $2.9 million, respectively, excluding any related
income tax benefits. The decrease of $0.3 million of accrued interest is primarily related to the decrease of unrecognized tax benefits due to
settlements with taxing authorities, partially offset by the accrual of interest during the six months ended June 30, 2009. The Company
recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as a component of income tax expense which is recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company has various state net operating loss carryovers representing $1.5 million of state taxes as of December 31, 2008. The net operating
loss carryovers will expire, if unused, during the period from 2009 through 2027.

10
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9. Income Taxes, continued

The effective tax rate for the provision recognized was 31.4% for the six-month period ended June 30, 2009. The effective tax rate for the
provision recognized is lower than the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to tax credits, partially offset by state income taxes. The tax
credits are primarily FICA tip and other compensation-related tax credits associated with Applebee�s company-owned restaurant operations.

10. Stock-Based Compensation

From time to time, the Company grants stock options and restricted stock to officers, directors and employees of the Company under the 2001
Stock Incentive Plan (the �2001 Plan�) and the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the �2005 Plan�). The stock options
generally vest over a three-year period and have a maturity of ten years from the issuance date. Option exercise prices equal the closing price of
the common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant. Restricted stock provides for the issuance of shares of the Company�s
common stock at no cost to the holder and vests over terms determined by the Compensation Committee of the Company�s Board of Directors,
generally three years. The restricted stock generally vests only if the employee is actively employed by the Company on the vesting date, and
unvested restricted shares are forfeited upon either termination, retirement before age 65, death or disability, unless the Compensation
Committee of the Company�s Board of Directors determines otherwise. When vested options and restricted stock are issued, the Company
generally issues new shares from its authorized but unissued share pool or utilizes treasury stock.

The following table summarizes the components of the Company�s stock-based compensation expense included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated financial statements:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(In millions)

Total Stock-Based Compensation:
Pre-tax compensation expense $ 2.1 $ 4.0 $ 5.3 $ 7.1
Tax provision (benefit) (0.7 ) (4.2 ) (1.7 ) (4.5 )
Total stock-based compensation
expense, net of tax $ 1.4 $ (0.2 ) $ 3.6 $ 2.6

As of June 30, 2009, $11.1 million and $8.0 million (including estimated forfeitures) of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
restricted stock and stock options, respectively, is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.85 years for restricted stock
and 2.48 years for stock options.

The estimated fair values of the options granted year-to-date in 2009 were calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following
summarizes the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model:
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Risk-free interest rate 1.93%
Weighted average historical volatility 72.1%
Dividend yield �
Expected years until exercise 5.0
Forfeitures 11.0%
Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 4.61

11
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10. Stock-Based Compensation, continued

Option activity under the Company�s stock option plan as of June 30, 2009, and changes during the six-month period then ended were as follows:

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(in Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 933,939 $ 36.37
Granted 961,750 $ 7.57
Exercised (14,500 ) $ 21.82
Expired (14,666 ) $ 41.90
Forfeited (169,074 ) $ 22.93
Outstanding at June 30, 2009 1,697,449 $ 21.47 8.19 $ 21,861,000
Vested at June 30, 2009 and Expected
to Vest 1,444,505 $ 22.56 7.97 $ 17,532,000
Exercisable at June 30, 2009 511,082 $ 38.62 5.19 $ 662,000

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company�s closing stock
price on the last trading day of the second quarter of 2009 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would
have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on June 30, 2009. The amount of aggregate intrinsic
value will change based on the fair market value of the Company�s stock and the number of in-the-money options.

A summary of restricted stock activity for the six months ended June 30, 2009 is presented below:

Shares
Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2008 671,480 $ 45.07
Granted 215,825 $ 9.08
Released (110,999 ) $ 48.83
Forfeited (80,133 ) $ 32.61
Nonvested at June 30, 2009 696,173 $ 37.74

11. Other Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income, net of taxes, are as follows:
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(In millions)

Net income (loss) $ 24.8 $ (19.4 ) $ 62.0 $ (5.5 )
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Interest rate swap 2.1 2.0 4.1 3.7
Temporary decline in
available-for-sale securities � (0.3 ) � (0.3 )
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 26.9 $ (17.7 ) $ 66.1 $ (2.1 )

The amount of income tax benefit allocated to the interest rate swap was $1.3 million and $2.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009
and 2008, respectively. The amount of income tax benefit allocated to the interest rate swap was $2.7 million and $2.3 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The amount of income tax benefit allocated to the temporary decline in securities was $0.2 million
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008.

12
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11. Other Comprehensive Income, continued

The accumulated comprehensive loss of $25.3 million (net of tax) as of June 30, 2009 is comprised of $24.9 million related to a terminated
interest rate swap and $0.4 million related to a temporary decline in available-for-sale securities. The accumulated comprehensive loss of $29.4
million (net of tax) as of December 31, 2008 is comprised of $29.0 million related to a terminated interest rate swap and $0.4 million related to a
temporary decline in available-for-sale securities.

12. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The computation of the Company�s basic and diluted net income per share is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30,
2009 2008

(In thousands, except per
share data)

Numerator for basic and dilutive income�per common share:
Net income (loss) $ 24,814 $ (19,385 )
Less: Series A Preferred Stock dividends (4,750 ) (4,750 )
Less: Accretion of Series B Preferred Stock (569 ) (535 )
Less: Net (income) loss allocated to unvested participating restricted stock (719 ) 930
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders� basic 18,776 (23,740 )
Effect of unvested participating restricted stock in two-class calculation 36 �
Accretion of Series B Preferred Stock* 569 �
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders� diluted $ 19,381 $ (23,740 )
Denominator:
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock 16,929 16,768
Dilutive effect of:
Stock options * 363 �
Convertible Series B Preferred Stock * 553 �
Common stock and common stock equivalents 17,845 16,768
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 1.11 $ (1.42 )
Diluted $ 1.09 $ (1.42 )

Six Months Ended June 30,
2009 2008

(In thousands, except per
share data)

Numerator for basic and dilutive income�per common share:
Net income (loss) $ 61,955 $ (5,531 )
Less: Series A Preferred Stock dividends (9,500 ) (9,500 )
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Less: Accretion of Series B Preferred Stock (1,129 ) (1,056 )
Less: Net (income) loss allocated to unvested participating restricted stock (1,916 ) 539
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders� basic 49,410 (15,548 )
Effect of unvested participating restricted stock in two-class calculation 77 �
Accretion of Series B Preferred Stock* 1,129 �
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders� diluted $ 50,616 $ (15,548 )
Denominator:
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock 16,886 16,735
Dilutive effect of:
Stock options * 184 �
Convertible Series B Preferred Stock * 555 �
Common stock and common stock equivalents 17,625 16,735
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 2.93 $ (0.93 )
Diluted $ 2.87 $ (0.93 )

* The effect of adding shares from the assumed exercise of stock options and conversion of Series B Convertible Preferred stock to the
denominator and the related add-back of the dividends on Series B Convertible Preferred stock to the numerator is anti-dilutive for the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2008.

13
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13. Fair Value Measurements

The Company has one type of financial instrument that is measured on a recurring basis at fair value as defined by SFAS No. 157, investments
held by Applebee�s captive insurance subsidiary. None of the Company�s non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities must be measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Company has not elected to use fair value measurement on any assets or liabilities as provided by SFAS No. 159,
The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities�Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1,
defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that
are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists; therefore
requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

The fair value of the investments held by the captive insurance company at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was $4.6 million and $5.6
million, respectively, and was determined based on Level 3 inputs using a risk-adjusted discounted cash flow model under the income approach.
The cost basis of the investment was $5.0 million and $6.0 million, respectively, with a temporary impairment of $0.4 million recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. There was no gain or loss, realized or unrealized, during the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2009.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We believe the fair values of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and the current portion of long-term debt approximate their
carrying amounts due to their short duration.

The fair values of non-current financial liabilities are shown in the following table.

June 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

(In millions)
Long-term debt, less
current maturities $ 1,718.5 $ 1,408.0 $ 1,853.4 $ 1,177.2

Series A Preferred
Stock $ 187.1 $ 160.2 $ 187.1 $ 131.2

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the fair value of the non-current financial liabilities was determined based on Level 3 inputs using a
risk-adjusted discounted cash flow model under the income approach. The change in fair value as of June 30, 2009, compared to the fair value as
of December 31, 2008 was due a change in the discount rate assumption utilized in the risk-adjusted discounted cash flow model.

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

29



14

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

30



Table of Contents

15. Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (�FIN46(R)�),to clarify the
application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certain entities, called variable interest entities
(�VIEs�), in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. Under FIN 46(R), an enterprise that absorbs a majority of the VIE�s
expected losses, receives a majority of the VIE�s expected residual returns, or both, is considered to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE and
must consolidate the entity in its financial statements.

In February 2009, the Company and owners of Applebee�s and IHOP franchise restaurants formed Centralized Supply Chain Services, LLC
(�CSCS� or the �Co-op�) to manage procurement activities for the Applebee�s and IHOP restaurants choosing to join the Co-op. CSCS meets the
definition of a VIE under FIN 46(R). Under the terms of the Co-op agreements, each member restaurant belonging to CSCS has equal and
identical ownership rights and obligations. IHOP franchise restaurants to which the Company has provided financial support in the form of loans
to purchase franchises and equipment are considered de facto agents of the Company for purposes of determining the primary beneficiary of the
VIE. Company-owned Applebee�s and IHOP restaurants, in addition to the IHOP franchise restaurants deemed de facto agents, comprised only
33.6% of the CSCS membership as of the date of determination of the primary beneficiary of the VIE. Accordingly, the Company is not
considered to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE and therefore does not consolidate the results of CSCS.

Under the Co-op agreements, the Company is obligated to make a one-time payment to CSCS for start-up costs of $6.3 million, $3.5 million of
which has been paid as of June 30, 2009, with payments of $2.0 million and $0.8 million due in July 2009 and January 2010, respectively. The
Company is not obligated to provide any support to the Co-op under any explicit or implied agreement beyond this $6.3 million.

The Co-op does not purchase items on behalf of member restaurants; rather, it facilitates purchasing agreements and distribution arrangements
between suppliers and member restaurants. Because of this, it is anticipated that CSCS will acquire a minimal amount of assets and incur a
minimal amount of liabilities. Each member restaurant is responsible for only the goods and services it chooses to purchase and bears no
responsibility or risk of loss for goods and services purchased by other member restaurants. Based on these facts, the Company believes its
maximum estimated loss related to its membership in the Co-op is de minimis.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation, Claims and Disputes

The Company is subject to various lawsuits, claims and governmental inspections or audits arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of
these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial damages. In the opinion of management, these matters are adequately covered
by insurance or, if not so covered, are without merit or are of such a nature or involve amounts that would not have a material adverse impact on
the Company�s business or consolidated financial statements.
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Gerald Fast v. Applebee�s

The Company is currently defending a collective action filed under the Fair Labor Standards Act styled Gerald Fast v. Applebee�s
International, Inc., in which named plaintiffs claim that tipped workers in company restaurants perform excessive amounts of non-tipped work
for which they should be compensated at the minimum wage.  The court has conditionally certified a nationwide class of servers and bartenders
who have worked in company-operated Applebee�s restaurants since June 19, 2004.  Unlike a class action, a collective action requires potential
class members to �opt in� rather than �opt out.�  On February 12, 2008, 5,540 opt-in forms were filed with the court.

In cases of this type, conditional certification of the plaintiff class is granted under a lenient standard.  On January 15, 2009, the Company filed a
motion seeking to have the class de-certified and the plaintiffs filed a motion for summary judgment, both of which are pending before the court.
 The Company believes it has strong defenses supporting the de-certification of the class, as well as strong defenses to the substantive claims
asserted, and intends to vigorously defend this case.  Trial is currently set for September 8, 2009, in Jefferson City, Missouri. An estimate of the
possible loss, if any, or the range of the loss cannot be made and, therefore, the Company has not accrued a loss contingency related to this
matter.
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Lease Guarantees

As of June 30, 2009, in connection with the sale of Applebee�s restaurants or previous brands to franchisees and other parties, the Company has,
in certain cases, guaranteed or had potential continuing liability for lease payments totaling $123.8 million. This amount represents the
maximum potential liability of future payments under these leases. These leases have been assigned to the buyers and expire at the end of the
respective lease terms which range from 2009 through 2044. In the event of default, the indemnity and default clauses in our sale or assignment
agreements govern our ability to pursue and recover damages incurred.  No material liabilities have been recorded as of June 30, 2009.

17. Preferred Stock

The Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights, and Qualifications,
Limitations, and Restrictions Thereof of Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock  (the �Certificate of Designations�) requires that upon the occurrence
of a Change of Control, unless prohibited by applicable law, the Company shall redeem all then outstanding shares of the Series A Perpetual
Preferred Stock for cash at a redemption price per share corresponding to the timing of such Change of Control, as specified in the Certificate of
Designations.  U.S. GAAP requires preferred securities that are redeemable for cash or other assets to be classified outside of permanent equity
if they are redeemable upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within the control of the issuer. Accordingly, the Series A Perpetual
Preferred Stock is not included as a component of Stockholders� Equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

18. Subsequent Event

On July 1, 2009, the Company completed the sale of two Applebee�s company-operated restaurants in New Mexico. As discussed in Note 5,
Assets Held For Sale, these restaurants were reported as part of Assets Held for Sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2009. The
Company received after-tax proceeds from this sale of approximately $5 million.
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Item 2.  Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements in certain circumstances. This report
contains statements that involve expectations, plans or intentions (such as those relating to future business or financial results, new features or
services, or management strategies). These statements are forward-looking and are subject to risks and uncertainties, so actual results may vary
materially from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by words
such as �may,� �will,� �should,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �believe,� �estimate,� �intend,� �plan,� and other similar expressions. You should consider our
forward-looking statements in light of the risks discussed under the heading �Risk Factors� in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
well as our consolidated financial statements, related notes, and the other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report and our other
filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

Overview

The following discussion and analysis provides information we believe is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our consolidated
results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the
notes thereto included in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report and the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and
Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in the Company�s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. Except where the context indicates otherwise, the words �we,� �us,� �our� and the �Company�
refer to DineEquity, Inc., together with its subsidiaries that are consolidated in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(�U.S. GAAP�).

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1976. The first International House of Pancakes (�IHOP�) restaurant
opened in 1958 in Toluca Lake, California. Shortly thereafter the Company�s predecessor began developing and franchising additional
restaurants. In November 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of Applebee�s International, Inc. (�Applebee�s�), which became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. We own and operate two restaurant concepts in the casual dining and family dining categories of the
food service industry: Applebee�s Neighborhood Grill and Bar® and IHOP. References herein to Applebee�s and IHOP restaurants are to these
two restaurant concepts, whether operated by franchisees or the Company. References herein to �system sales� include retail sales at restaurants
that are owned by franchisees and area licensees and are not attributable to the Company. With more than 3,400 franchised or
owned-and-operated restaurants combined, we are the largest full-service restaurant company in the world.

Restaurant Concepts

Applebee�s
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We franchise and operate restaurants in the bar and grill segment of the casual dining industry under the name �Applebee�s Neighborhood Grill &
Bar®.� With 1,992 system-wide restaurants as of June 30, 2009, Applebee�s Neighborhood Grill & Bar is one of the largest casual dining concepts
in the world, in terms of number of restaurants and market share.

Generally, Applebee�s franchise arrangements consist of a development agreement and separate franchise agreements for each franchised
restaurant. Development agreements grant to the franchise developer the exclusive right to develop Applebee�s restaurants in a designated
geographic area over a specified period of time. The term of a domestic development agreement is generally 20 years. The development
agreement typically provides for an initial development schedule of one to five years, as agreed upon by the Company and the franchisee. At or
shortly prior to the completion of the initial development schedule or any subsequent development schedule, the Company and the franchisee
generally agree upon supplemental development schedules providing for the development of additional Applebee�s restaurants in the franchise
developer�s exclusive territory.

Prior to the opening of each new Applebee�s restaurant, the franchisee and the Company enter into a separate franchise agreement for that
restaurant. Our standard franchise agreement has a term of 20 years and permits renewals for up to an additional 20 years upon payment of an
additional franchise fee. Our current standard franchise arrangement calls for an initial franchise fee of $35,000 and a royalty fee equal to 4% of
the restaurant�s monthly net sales. We have agreements with a majority of our franchisees for Applebee�s restaurants opened before January 1,
2000, which provide for a royalty rate of 4% and extend the initial term of the franchise agreements until 2020. The terms, royalties and
advertising fees under a limited number of franchise agreements and other franchise fees under older development agreements vary from the
currently offered arrangements.

We currently require domestic franchisees of Applebee�s restaurants to contribute 2.75% of their gross sales to a national advertising fund and to
spend at least 1% of their gross sales on local marketing and promotional activities. Under most Applebee�s franchise agreements, we have the
ability to increase the amount of the required combined contribution to the national advertising fund and the amount required to be spent on local
marketing and promotional activities to a maximum of 5% of gross sales.

Since the completion of the Applebee�s acquisition on November 29, 2007, we have been pursuing a strategy which contemplates transitioning
from our current 80% franchised system to an approximately 98% franchised system. Between November 
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29, 2007 and June 30, 2009 we have franchised 108 company-owned restaurants in the California, Nevada, Delaware, Texas and New Mexico
markets. This heavily franchised business model is expected to require less capital investment and reduce the volatility of cash flow performance
over time.  A range of factors including the overall market for restaurant franchises, the availability of financing, and the financial and operating
performance of Applebee�s company-owned restaurants can impact the likelihood and timing of the completion of this strategy as well as the
ultimate proceeds the Company will receive from franchising the company-operated restaurants.  The Company continues to monitor these
factors and to assess their impact on possible franchise transactions.  The Company may choose to suspend or revise its franchising strategy if it
does not believe that conditions will lead to satisfactory proceeds from the sale of its company-operated restaurants.

IHOP

Under our current business model (the �Current Business Model�), which was adopted in January 2003, a potential franchisee first negotiates and
enters into a single store development agreement or a multi-store development agreement with the Company and, upon completion of a
prescribed approval procedure, is primarily responsible for the development and financing of one or more new IHOP franchised restaurants. In
general, we do not provide any financing with respect to the franchise fee or otherwise. The franchise developer uses its own capital and
financial resources along with third party financial sources to purchase or lease a restaurant site, build and equip the business and fund its
working capital needs. The principal terms of the franchise agreements entered into under the Company�s business model prior to 2003 (the
�Previous Business Model�) and the Current Business Model, including the franchise royalties and the franchise advertising fees, are substantially
the same except with respect to the terms relating to the franchise fee.

The revenues received by the Company from a typical franchise development arrangement under the Current Business Model include (a) (i) a
location fee equal to $15,000 upon execution of a single store development agreement or (ii) a development fee equal to $20,000 for each IHOP
restaurant that the franchisee contracts to develop upon execution of a multi-store development agreement; (b) a franchise fee equal to
(i) $50,000 (against which the $15,000 location fee will be credited) for a restaurant developed under a single store development agreement or
(ii) $40,000 (against which the $20,000 development fee will be credited) for each restaurant developed under a multi-store development
agreement, in each case, paid upon execution of the franchise agreement; (c) franchise royalties equal to 4.5% of weekly gross sales; (d) revenue
from the sale of pancake and waffle dry-mixes; and (e) franchise advertising fees.

IHOP franchised restaurants established prior to 2003 under the Previous Business Model were generally developed by the Company. The
Company was involved in all aspects of the development and financing of the restaurants. Under the Previous Business Model, the Company
typically identified and leased or purchased the restaurant sites for new company-developed IHOP restaurants, built and equipped the restaurants
and then franchised them to franchisees. In addition, IHOP typically financed as much as 80% of the franchise fee for periods ranging from five
to eight years and leased the restaurant and equipment to the franchisee over a 25-year period.

The revenues received from a restaurant franchised under the Previous Business Model include: (a) the franchise fee, a portion of which
(typically 20%) was paid upon execution of the franchise agreement; (b) interest income from the financing arrangements for the unpaid portion
of the franchise fee under the franchise notes; (c) franchise royalties typically equal to 4.5% of weekly gross sales; (d) lease or sublease rents for
the restaurant property and building; (e) rent under an equipment lease; (f) revenues from the sale of pancake and waffle dry-mixes; and
(g) franchise advertising fees.

The franchise agreements generally provide for advertising fees comprised of (i) a local advertising fee generally equal to 2.0% of weekly gross
sales under the franchise agreement, which was usually collected by us and then used to cover the cost of local media purchases and other local
advertising expenses incurred by a local advertising cooperative, and (ii) a national advertising fee equal to 1.0% of weekly gross sales under the
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franchise agreement. Area licensees are generally required to pay lesser amounts toward advertising. Beginning in 2005, the Company and the
IHOP franchisees agreed to reallocate portions of the local advertising fees to purchase national broadcast, syndication and cable television time
in order to reach our target audience more frequently and more cost effectively. In a few instances, we have agreed to accept reduced royalties
and/or lease payments from franchisees or have provided other accommodations to franchisees for specified periods of time in order to assist
them in either establishing or reinvigorating their businesses.
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The following table summarizes Applebee�s restaurant development and franchising activity:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(unaudited)

Applebee�s Restaurant Development Activity
Beginning of period 1,992 1,986 2,004 1,976
New openings
Company-developed � � � 1
Franchisee-developed 5 11 10 27
Total new openings 5 11 10 28
Closings
Company � (2) � (3)
Franchise (5) (2) (22) (8)
End of period 1,992 1,993 1,992 1,993
Summary-end of period
Franchise 1,591 1,484 1,591 1,484
Company 401 509 401 509
Total 1,992 1,993 1,992 1,993
Restaurant Franchising Activity
Domestic franchisee-developed 2 6 7 17
International franchisee-developed 3 5 3 10
Refranchised � � 5 �
Total restaurants franchised 5 11 15 27
Closings
Domestic franchisee (2) (2) (18) (7)
International franchisee (3) � (4) (1)
Total franchise closings (5) (2) (22) (8)
Net addition (reduction) � 9 (7) 19

The increase in Applebee�s franchise closings in 2009 was due primarily to the closing of seven restaurants after the franchise agreements were
terminated due to nonpayment of royalties and advertising fees.  The Company expects up to four of the seven restaurants to re-open under new
ownership in 2009.  In addition, six of the restaurants closed in 2009 were originally planned to be closed in 2008.

The following table represents Applebee�s restaurant development commitments for 2009 and 2010. We have disclosed development
commitments for only a two-year period as the Applebee�s development agreements generally provide for a series of two-year development
commitments after the initial development period.

Contractual
Opening of

Restaurants by Year
2009 2010

Domestic development agreements 19 15
International development agreements 23 18

42 33
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In 2009, we expect franchisees to open a total of 29 to 36 new Applebee�s restaurants including 17 to 21 domestic franchise restaurants and 12 to
15 international franchise restaurants. We do not currently plan to open any domestic company-operated restaurants. The actual number of
openings may differ from our expectations due to various factors, including economic conditions, operating performance of existing restaurants,
franchisee access to capital, and the impact of currency fluctuations on our international franchisees. The timing of new restaurant openings may
also be affected by various factors including weather-related and other construction delays and difficulties in obtaining regulatory approvals.
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The following table summarizes IHOP restaurant development and franchising activity:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(unaudited)

IHOP Restaurant Development Activity
Beginning of period 1,402 1,353 1,396 1,344
New openings
Company-developed � � � �
Franchisee-developed 20 14 31 25
Area license 3 1 3 1
Total new openings 23 15 34 26
Closings
Company � (1) � (1)
Franchise (3) (4) (7) (6)
Area license (1) (2) (2) (2)
End of period 1,421 1,361 1,421 1,361
Summary-end of period
Franchise 1,249 1,195 1,249 1,195
Company 11 10 11 10
Area license 161 156 161 156
Total 1,421 1,361 1,421 1,361
Restaurant Franchising Activity
Domestic franchisee-developed 17 13 28 24
International franchisee-developed 3 1 3 1
Refranchised 1 5 1 9
Total restaurants franchised 21 19 32 34
Closings
Domestic franchisee (3) (3) (7) (5)
International franchisee � (1) � (1)
Total franchise closings (3) (4) (7) (6)
Reacquired by the Company � (6) (1) (9)
Net addition 18 9 24 19

As of December 31, 2008, we had signed commitments from franchisees to build 307 IHOP restaurants over the next nine years plus options for
an additional 111 restaurants, comprised as follows:

Contractual Openings of
Restaurants by Year

Number of Signed
Agreements at

12/31/08 2009 2010 2011
2012 and
thereafter Total

Single-store development agreements 18 12 5 1 � 18
Multi-store development agreements 80 74 55 43 165 337
International development
agreements 7 8 6 5 44 63

105 94 66 49 209 418
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In 2009, a total of 65 to 75 new IHOP restaurants are expected to open, consisting of 55 to 60 franchise restaurants, three to five area license
restaurants in Florida and seven to ten restaurants outside the U.S. or in non-traditional channels. The actual number of openings in any period
may differ from the number of signed commitments. Historically, the actual number of restaurants developed in a particular year has been less
than the total number committed to be developed due to various factors including weather-related delays, other construction delays, difficulties
in obtaining timely regulatory approvals and various economic factors, including operating performance of existing restaurants and franchisee
access to capital financing.
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Restaurant Data

The following table sets forth, for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the number of effective restaurants in
the Applebee�s and IHOP systems and information regarding the percentage change in sales at those restaurants compared to the same periods in
the prior year. �Effective restaurants� are the number of restaurants in a given period, adjusted to account for restaurants open for only a portion of
the period. Information is presented for all effective restaurants in the IHOP and Applebee�s systems, which includes restaurants owned by the
Company, as well as those owned by franchisees and area licensees. Sales at restaurants that are owned by franchisees and area licensees are not
attributable to the Company. However, we believe that presentation of this information is useful in analyzing our revenues because franchisees
and area licensees pay us royalties and advertising fees that are generally based on a percentage of their sales, as well as rental payments under
leases that are usually based on a percentage of their sales. Management also uses this information to make decisions about future plans for the
development of additional restaurants as well as evaluation of current operations.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(unaudited)

Applebee�s Restaurant Data
Effective restaurants(a)
Franchise 1,589 1,480 1,590 1,474
Company 401 510 403 510
Total 1,990 1,990 1,993 1,984
System-wide(b)
Sales percentage change(c) (4.2 )% 0.3 % (3.4 )% 1.6 %
Domestic same-store sales
percentage change(d) (4.3 )% (1.7 )% (3.6 )% (0.6 )%
Franchise(b)(e)
Sales percentage change(c)(g) 3.1 % 0.8 % 3.9 % 1.7 %
Same-store sales percentage
change(d) (4.2 )% (1.8 )% (3.5 )% (0.9 )%
Average weekly domestic unit sales
(in thousands) $ 46.6 $ 48.5 $ 48.0 $ 49.7
Company
Sales percentage change(c)(g) (25.4 )% (1.0 )% (24.5 )% 1.1 %
Same-store sales percentage
change(d) (4.8 )% (1.5 )% (4.0 )% 0.3 %
Average weekly domestic unit sales
(in thousands) $ 41.9 $ 44.2 $ 43.3 $ 45.3

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
(unaudited)

IHOP Restaurant Data
Effective restaurants(a)
Franchise 1,235 1,185 1,230 1,180
Company 11 10 11 10
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Area license 160 158 159 157
Total 1,406 1,353 1,400 1,347
System-wide(b)
Sales percentage change(c) 3.6 % 6.3 % 4.6 % 7.1 %
Domestic same-store sales
percentage change(d) (0.6 )% 2.6 % 0.7 % 3.2 %
Franchise(b)(e)
Sales percentage change(c) 3.9 % 6.9 % 5.1 % 7.7 %
Same-store sales percentage
change(d) (0.6 )% 2.6 % 0.7 % 3.2 %
Average weekly unit sales (in
thousands) $ 35.2 $ 35.3 $ 35.8 $ 35.5
Company(f) n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m.
Area License(h)
Sales percentage change(c) 0.9 % 2.2 % (0.3 )% 2.7 %
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(a) �Effective restaurants� are the number of restaurants in a given fiscal period adjusted to account for restaurants open for only a portion of
the period. Information is presented for all effective restaurants in the IHOP and Applebee�s systems, which includes restaurants owned
by the Company as well as those owned by franchisees and area licensees.

(b) �System-wide sales� are retail sales at IHOP and Applebee�s restaurants operated by franchisees and IHOP restaurants operated by area
licensees, as reported to the Company, in addition to retail sales at company-operated restaurants. Sales at restaurants that are owned by
franchisees and area licensees are not attributable to the Company.

(c) �Sales percentage change� reflects, for each category of restaurants, the percentage change in sales in any given fiscal period compared to
the prior fiscal period for all restaurants in that category.

(d) �Same-store sales percentage change� reflects the percentage change in sales, in any given fiscal period compared to the prior fiscal period,
for restaurants that have been operated throughout both fiscal periods that are being compared and have been open for at least 18 months.
Because of new unit openings and store closures, the restaurants open throughout both fiscal periods being compared may be different
from period to period. Same-store sales percentage change does not include data on IHOP restaurants located in Florida.

(e) IHOP franchise restaurant sales were $564.3 million and $543.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
and $1,146.3 million and $1,090.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Applebee�s franchise restaurant
sales were $886.4 million and $859.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and $1,826.3 million and
$1,757.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(f) Sales percentage change and same-store sales percentage change for IHOP company-operated restaurants are not meaningful due to the
relatively small number and test-market nature of the restaurants, along with the periodic inclusion of restaurants reacquired from
franchisees that are temporarily operated by the Company.

(g) The sales percentage change for Applebee�s franchise and company-operated restaurants is impacted by the franchising of 103
company-operated restaurants during 2008 and five company-operated restaurants in 2009.

(h) Sales at IHOP area license restaurants were $54.4 million and $53.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, and $110.9 million and $111.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Significant Known Events, Trends or Uncertainties Impacting or Expected to Impact Comparisons of Reported or Future Results

Global Economic Contraction

Beginning in 2008 and continuing into 2009, economic conditions in both the U.S. and worldwide have experienced a downturn due to the
compounded effects of the subprime lending crisis, the credit market liquidity crisis, and the collateral effects of each on the finance and banking
industries. In addition, volatile energy costs, concerns about inflation and deflation, slower economic activity, softness in both the commercial
and residential real estate markets, decreased consumer confidence, reduced corporate profits and capital spending and rising unemployment
have combined to create generally adverse business conditions for most industries and sectors. While the liquidity crisis and its effects on the
finance and banking industries have mitigated somewhat, we believe financial market volatility, rising unemployment, increasing foreclosures
and lower valuations for residential real estate will continue to put pressure on consumer spending. These conditions make it challenging for us
to accurately forecast and plan future business activities as the reduction in disposable income for discretionary spending could cause our
customers to change historic purchasing behavior and choose lower-cost dining options or alternatives to dining out.

These economic developments may affect our business and operations in a number of ways, including but not limited to:

• lower profitability and cash flows from company-operated restaurants;

• reduced payments from franchisees due to both a lower sales base on which royalties and other payments are calculated and possible
impairment of the ability of franchisees to make payments when due as a result of the economic effects cited above on their businesses;

• availability of financing for franchisees to fulfill their new restaurant development commitments;

• credit availability for potential purchasers of Applebee�s company-operated restaurants;

• lower proceeds from the franchising of Applebee�s company-operated restaurants due to both lower restaurant sales and profitability
and/or inability to consummate transactions at all; and

• lower estimated fair values for goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets resulting in future non-cash impairment charges.
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We cannot predict the effect or duration of this economic slowdown or the timing and strength of a subsequent recovery in the economy in
general or the restaurant industry in particular. If our business significantly deteriorates due to these macroeconomic effects, our financial
condition and results of operations will likely be materially and adversely affected.

Securitized Debt and Related Interest Expense

Certain of our subsidiaries incurred a substantial amount of indebtedness to finance the Applebee�s acquisition. As a result, our interest expense
has increased significantly from that reported prior to the acquisition and is expected to remain as one of the largest components of costs and
expenses in the future until such time that debt balances are repaid or otherwise retired. We estimate the interest expense for fiscal 2009 will be
approximately $185 million to $195 million, which includes approximately $40 million of non-cash interest charges.

Significant Gains and Charges

There were several significant gains and charges affecting the comparisons with previously reported results. In the six months ended June 30,
2009, we recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $38.8 million, a gain on disposition of assets of $5.1 million and impairment and
closure charges of $2.0 million. In the comparable period of 2008, we recognized impairment and closure charges of $41.4 million and a gain on
disposition of assets of $0.2 million. These transactions are discussed in further detail under paragraphs captioned �Impairment and Closure
Charges,� �Gain on Extinguishment of Debt� and �Gain on Disposition of Assets.�

We expect to continue to dedicate a portion of excess cash flow towards opportunistic debt retirement. Since the fair value of our debt is
currently less than its carrying value and is likely to remain less than carrying value for the foreseeable future, it is reasonably possible that
extinguishments of debt repurchased on the open market will result in gains in future periods.
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Financial Statement Effect of Franchising Company-Operated Restaurants

We have franchised 108 Applebee�s company-operated restaurants and plan to franchise a substantial majority of the remaining 401
company-operated Applebee�s restaurants when such transactions make sense for the business. As mentioned above in Restaurant Concepts �
Applebee�s, the Company considers a range of factors that could impact the likelihood of future franchise sales and possible proceeds from such
sales. The Company may suspend or delay its plans to sell company-operated Applebee�s restaurants if it does not believe the sales proceeds
would be satisfactory. If the number of company-operated restaurants declines, the amount of Company restaurant revenues and Company
restaurant expenses in future periods will decline as well compared to amounts reported in previous periods. Franchise royalty revenues and
expenses will likely increase as company-operated restaurants are franchised, although not in the same magnitude as the Company restaurant
revenues decline as franchise royalties are based on a percentage of the franchisee�s revenues. As a result, on a net basis, segment profit will
likely decline.

Under the terms of our securitized debt agreements, all proceeds of asset dispositions must be used to retire debt on a pro-rata basis.
Accordingly, franchising of additional Applebee�s company-operated restaurants will result in reduction of long-term debt and a reduction of
related interest expense.

Segments

We identify our segments based on the organizational units used by management to monitor performance and make operating decisions. The
Company�s revenues and expenses are recorded in four segments: franchise operations, company restaurant operations, rental operations, and
financing operations.

The franchise operations segment consists of (i) restaurants operated by Applebee�s franchisees in the United States, one U.S. territory and 14
countries outside the United States; and (ii) restaurants operated by IHOP franchisees and area licensees in the United States, Canada and
Mexico. Franchise operations revenue consists primarily of franchise royalty revenues, sales of proprietary products, certain franchise
advertising fees and the portion of the franchise fees allocated to intellectual property.  Franchise operations expenses include advertising
expense, the cost of proprietary products, pre-opening training expenses and costs related to intellectual property provided to certain franchisees.

The company restaurant operations segment consists of company-operated Applebee�s and IHOP restaurants and, from time to time, IHOP
restaurants reacquired from franchisees that are operated on a temporary basis. Company restaurant sales are retail sales at company-operated
restaurants. Company restaurant expenses are operating expenses at company-operated restaurants and include food, labor, benefits, utilities,
rent and other restaurant operating costs.

Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from direct financing leases. Rental operations expenses
are costs of operating leases and interest expense on capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants.
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Financing operations revenue consists of the portion of franchise fees not allocated to intellectual property, sales of equipment, as well as
interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases. Financing expenses are primarily the cost of restaurant equipment.

Comparison of the Three Months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Results of Operations

Key components of changes in our financial results for the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the comparable quarter of 2008
included:

• Revenues decreased $74.5 million, due to (a) lower company restaurant revenues resulting from the franchising of 108
company-operated Applebee�s restaurants since the second quarter of 2008 and a 4.8% decrease in Applebee�s company restaurant same-store
sales; (b) lower financing revenues resulting from a decrease in sales of reacquired franchises and equipment; and (c) a 4.2% decrease in
same-store sales for Applebee�s domestic franchise restaurants and a 0.6% decrease in same-store sales for IHOP domestic franchise restaurants,
partially offset by higher franchise revenues resulting from an increase in effective franchise units at both Applebee�s and IHOP.
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• Segment profit for the second quarter of 2009 decreased $5.7 million, comprised as follows:

Franchise operations $ 1.8
Company restaurant operations (6.7)
Rental operations 0.3
Financing operations (1.1)
Total segment profit $ (5.7)

The decline was primarily due to the net effect of franchising 108 company-operated Applebee�s restaurants since the second quarter of 2008 and
a decline in IHOP and Applebee�s same-store sales, partially offset by an increase in IHOP and Applebee�s effective franchise units and margin
improvements in Applebee�s company-operated restaurants.

• Impairment and closure charges totaled $2.4 million for the second quarter of 2009 compared to $41.2 million for the second quarter
of 2008.

• The Company recognized a gain on the extinguishment of debt of $12.4 million in the second quarter of 2009 from the repurchase of
debt at a discount.

• General and administrative expenses decreased $15.3 million, due primarily to the franchising of 108 Applebee�s company-operated
restaurants, integration of Applebee�s and IHOP administrative functions, cost reduction initiatives implemented in 2009, including the
establishment of a purchasing co-operative in February 2009, and lower stock-based compensation.

• Interest expense was $5.6 million lower due to the early retirement of fixed rate debt and lower interest rates on the Company�s
variable rate lines of credit.

Franchise Operations

Favorable
Three Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Franchise Revenues
Applebee�s $ 37.9 $ 37.7 $ 0.2
IHOP 52.6 49.7 2.9
Total franchise revenues 90.5 87.4 3.1
Franchise Expenses
Applebee�s 0.4 0.6 0.2
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IHOP 23.3 21.8 (1.5)
Total franchise expenses 23.7 22.4 (1.3)
Franchise Segment Profit
Applebee�s 37.5 37.1 0.4
IHOP 29.3 27.9 1.4
Total franchise segment profit $ 66.8 $ 65.0 $ 1.8

Consolidated franchise revenues grew by $3.1 million for the three-month period ended June 30, 2009 compared to the same period of the prior
year.

The increase in Applebee�s franchise revenue was primarily attributable to an increase in effective franchise restaurants of 109 units due to the
franchising of 108 company-operated restaurants since the second quarter of 2008, partially offset by a 4.2% decline in same-store sales for
Applebee�s domestic franchise restaurants and a decrease in franchise fees from reduced restaurant openings.

The increase in IHOP franchise revenue was primarily attributable to an increase in effective franchise restaurants of 50 units and an increase in
revenues from pancake mix sales and advertising, partially offset by a decrease of 0.6% in same-store sales for IHOP domestic franchise
restaurants. Same-store sales declined as a higher average guest check was offset by a decline in guest traffic.
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The Company believes that the decrease experienced in comparable guest traffic is reflective of the current adverse economic conditions
affecting customers and impacting the restaurant industry as a whole.

The $1.5 million increase in IHOP franchise expenses is due to the costs of sales associated with the increased revenues from pancake mix sales
and advertising along with a $0.5 million increase in bad debt expense due in part to bad debt recovery in 2008 that did not recur.

Company Restaurant Operations

Favorable
Three Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Company restaurant sales $ 222.3 $ 296.5 $ (74.2)
Company restaurant expenses 192.2 259.7 67.5
Company restaurant segment profit $ 30.1 $ 36.8 $ (6.7)

As of June 30, 2009 the substantial majority of Company restaurant operations are comprised of Applebee�s 401 company-operated restaurants as
compared to 11 company-operated IHOP restaurants. The impact of the IHOP restaurants on all comparisons of the three months ended June 30,
2009 with the same period of 2008 was negligible.

Company restaurant sales declined primarily due to a $74.5 million decline in Applebee�s sales. Applebee�s company restaurant sales declined
$62.8 million due to the franchising of 108 restaurants since the second quarter of 2008. Restaurant sales also declined due to a 4.8% decrease in
same-store sales driven mainly by a decline in guest traffic partially offset by a higher average guest check as the result of a 3.0% increase in
effective pricing. The Company believes that the decrease experienced in comparable guest traffic is reflective of the current adverse economic
conditions impacting customers.

Company restaurant expenses declined primarily due to a $68.0 million decline in Applebee�s expenses. Applebee�s company restaurant expenses
declined $53.3 million due to the franchising of 108 restaurants since the second quarter of 2008.  Applebee�s company restaurant operating
profit for the three months ended June 30, 2009 declined $6.5 million as the effect of franchising was partially offset by margin improvements of
1.3% as shown below.

Favorable
Three Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)

2009 2008 Variance
Food and beverage 26.4% 26.4% 0.0%
Labor 33.8% 35.1% 1.3%
Direct and occupancy 25.7% 25.7% 0.0%
Total Company Restaurant Expenses (a) 86.0% 87.3% 1.3%

(a) Percentages may not add due to rounding.
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Total food and beverage costs as a percentage of company restaurant sales remained constant due to the impact of menu price increases offset by
an unfavorable shift in menu mix and slightly higher commodity costs.

Total labor costs as a percentage of company restaurant sales decreased by 1.3%. Labor expenses improved primarily due to better utilization of
management labor along with open positions, a reduction in management incentive expense due to nonrecurring retention costs in 2008 and
lower incentive compensation in 2009 and favorable group insurance costs.

Direct and occupancy costs were unchanged as a percentage of company restaurant sales due primarily to lower natural gas rates and timing of
local advertising expenses offset by unfavorable depreciation due to lower sales volume.
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Rental Operations

Favorable
Three Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Rental revenues $ 32.5 $ 32.6 $ (0.1)
Rental expenses 24.2 24.6 0.4
Rental operations segment profit $ 8.3 $ 8.0 $ 0.3

Rental operations relate primarily to IHOP restaurants. Rental income includes revenue from operating leases, interest income from direct
financing leases and sales of reacquired franchises and equipment. Rental expenses are costs of prime operating leases and interest expense on
prime capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants.

Rental operations profit increased by $0.3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 compared to the same period of the prior year due to a
slight decline in depreciation and interest expense.

Financing Operations

Favorable
Three Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Financing revenues $ 4.3 $ 7.6 $ (3.3)
Financing expenses 0.3 2.5 2.2
Financing operations segment profit $ 4.0 $ 5.1 $ (1.1)

All of our financing operations relate to IHOP restaurants. Financing revenues and expenses decreased by $3.3 million and $2.2 million,
respectively.  Franchise and equipment note interest revenue declined $0.4 million due to the ongoing reduction in note balances. In addition,
there were revenues and expenses of $3.2 million and $2.5 million, respectively, in the second quarter of 2008 related to the sale of five
restaurants.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by $15.3 million. Expense savings related to franchising of 108 Applebee�s company-operated
restaurants, integration of Applebee�s and IHOP administrative functions, and cost reduction initiatives implemented in 2009, including the
establishment of a purchasing co-operative in February 2009. Additionally, litigation settlement costs of $4.7 million and transition-related costs
recorded in the second quarter of 2008 did not recur. These favorable items were offset by $3.0 million of development incentive credits related
to the Applebee�s support center received in the second quarter of 2008 that also did not recur.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $5.6 million primarily due to the early retirement of long-term debt over the past 12 months. Average long-term
obligations (long-term debt, capital lease obligations and financing obligations) declined to $2.25 billion during the quarter ended June 30, 2009
from $2.45 billion during the quarter ended June 30, 2008. Additionally, the weighted average interest rate on variable debt declined to
approximately 2.7% for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 from approximately 5.0% for the quarter ended June 30, 2008.

Impairment and Closure Charges

Impairment and closure charges were $2.4 million for the three-month period ended June 30, 2009, comprised of impairment charges of $2.0
million and closure charges of $0.4 million. The charges related primarily to leasehold improvements and related assets of one IHOP restaurant
closed during the period and an additional write-down to the estimated sales value, based on a current letter of intent, of one Applebee�s
restaurant that had been closed in a prior period and was included in assets held for sale.
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Impairment and closure charges were $41.2 million for the three-month period ended June 30, 2008. In June 2008, the Company entered into
sale-leaseback transactions on 181 parcels of real estate comprising land, buildings and improvements. The net book value of the real estate
exceeded the proceeds received by the amount of the recorded charge for impairment. All of the parcels involved in the transactions had been
acquired in the November 29, 2007 acquisition of Applebee�s and their estimated fair value was assigned as part of the purchase price allocation
as of that date. The Company evaluated events subsequent to November 29, 2007 and noted a deterioration in both the domestic real estate and
credit markets between the date of the purchase price allocation and the June 2008 date of the sale-leaseback transactions. In the absence of
objective evidence to the contrary, the Company concluded that the estimated fair value of the real estate determined in purchase price allocation
was reasonable and the decline in value related primarily to market events subsequent to the acquisition date value necessitating an impairment
charge as opposed to an adjustment to the allocated purchase price.

Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

During the three months ended June 30, 2009, the Company retired Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due
December 2037 with a face amount of $15.6 million and Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due December 2037 with
a face amount of $35.2 million for cash payments totaling $36.3 million. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of this debt of
$12.4 million after the write-off of the discount and deferred financing costs related to the debt retired.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for the provision recognized was 31.8% for the three-month period ended June 30, 2009. The effective tax rate recognized
is lower than the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to tax credits, partially offset by state income taxes. The tax credits are primarily
FICA tip and other compensation-related tax credits associated with Applebee�s company-owned restaurant operations.

Comparison of the Six Months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Results of Operations

Key components of changes in our financial results for the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the comparable quarter of 2008
included:

• Revenues decreased $141.7 million due to (a) lower company restaurant revenues resulting from the franchising of 108
company-operated Applebee�s restaurants since the second quarter of 2008 and a 4.0% decrease in Applebee�s company restaurant same-store
sales; (b) lower financing revenues resulting from a decrease in sales of reacquired franchises and equipment and (c) a 3.5% decrease in
same-store sales for Applebee�s domestic franchise restaurants. The revenue decreases were partially offset by higher franchise revenues
resulting from a 0.7% increase in IHOP franchise same-store sales and an increase in effective franchise units at both Applebee�s and IHOP.
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• Segment profit for the first six months of 2009 increased $0.4 million, comprised as follows:

Franchise operations $ 5.1
Company restaurant operations (4.3)
Rental operations 1.2
Financing operations (1.6)
Total segment profit $ 0.4

The increase was primarily due to an increase in IHOP and Applebee�s effective franchise units, an increase in IHOP same-store sales and margin
improvements in Applebee�s company-operated restaurants partially offset by the net effect of franchising 108 company-operated Applebee�s
restaurants since the second quarter of 2008 and a decline in Applebee�s same-store sales.

• Impairment and closure charges totaled $2.0 million for the first six months of 2009 compared to $41.4 million for the first six
months of 2008.

• General and administrative expenses decreased $15.7 million due primarily to the franchising of 108 Applebee�s company-operated
restaurants, integration of Applebee�s and IHOP administrative functions, cost reduction initiatives implemented in 2009 and lower stock-based
compensation.
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• The Company recognized gains on the extinguishment of debt and disposition of assets totaling $43.9 million in the first six months
of 2009 related primarily to the repurchase of debt at a discount and the franchising of five company-operated Applebee�s restaurants in the New
Mexico market.

• Interest expense was $7.8 million lower due to the early retirement of fixed rate debt and lower interest rates on the Company�s
variable rate lines of credit.

Franchise Operations

Favorable
Six Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)

2009 2008 Variance
(In millions)

Franchise Revenues
Applebee�s $ 80.4 $ 75.7 $ 4.7
IHOP 108.3 101.7 6.6
Total franchise revenues 188.7 177.4 11.3
Franchise Expenses
Applebee�s 3.8 1.0 (2.8)
IHOP 48.2 44.8 (3.4)
Total franchise expenses 52.0 45.8 (6.2)
Franchise Segment Profit
Applebee�s 76.6 74.7 1.9
IHOP 60.1 56.9 3.2
Total franchise segment profit $ 136.7 $ 131.6 $ 5.1

Consolidated franchise revenues grew by $11.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the same period of the prior year.

The increase in Applebee�s franchise revenue was primarily attributable to (a) revenue from temporary liquor license agreements related to
Applebee�s company-operated restaurants in the Texas market which were franchised in October 2008; and (b) an increase in Applebee�s effective
franchise restaurants of 116 units due to the franchising of 108 company-operated restaurants since the second quarter of 2008 and new openings
during 2008; partially offset by (c) a 3.5% decline in same-store sales for Applebee�s domestic franchise restaurants and (d) a decrease in
franchise fees from reduced restaurant openings.

The increase in IHOP franchise revenue was primarily attributable to (a) an increase of 0.7% in same-store sales for IHOP domestic franchise
restaurants compared to the first six months of 2008, primarily due to a higher average guest check partially offset by a decrease in guest traffic;
(b) an increase in IHOP effective franchise restaurants of 50 units due to new openings since June 30, 2008; and (c) an increase in revenues from
pancake mix and advertising.
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Consolidated franchise operations profit, which is franchise revenues less franchise expenses, increased by $5.1 million. The increase in
Applebee�s franchise expenses is primarily due to costs associated with the revenue from the temporary liquor license agreements that result in a
relatively small profit margin. The increase in IHOP franchise expenses is due to the costs of sales associated with the increased revenues from
pancake mix sales and advertising, in addition to an increase of $0.9 million in bad debt expense due in part to bad debt recovery in 2008 that
did not recur.

Company Restaurant Operations

Favorable
Six Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)

2009 2008 Variance
(In millions)

Company restaurant sales $ 461.8 $ 608.4 $ (146.6)
Company restaurant expenses 394.0 536.3 142.3
Company restaurant segment profit $ 67.8 $ 72.1 $ (4.3)

29

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

58



Table of Contents

As of June 30, 2009 the substantial majority of Company restaurant operations are comprised of Applebee�s 401 company-operated restaurants as
compared to 11 company-operated IHOP restaurants. The impact of the IHOP restaurants on all comparisons of the six months ended June 30,
2009 with the same period of 2008 was negligible.

Company restaurant sales declined primarily due to a $147.0 million decline in Applebee�s sales. Applebee�s company restaurant sales declined
$127.4 million due to the franchising of 108 restaurants since the second quarter of 2008. Restaurant sales also declined due to a 4.0% decrease
in same-store sales driven mainly by a decline in guest traffic partially offset by a higher average guest check as the result of a 3.1% increase in
effective pricing. The Company believes that the decrease experienced in comparable guest traffic is reflective of the current adverse economic
conditions impacting customers.

Company restaurant expenses declined primarily due to a $142.9 million decline in Applebee�s expenses. Applebee�s company restaurant
expenses declined $111.8 million due to the franchising of 108 restaurants since the second quarter of 2008. Applebee�s company restaurant
operating profit for the six months ended June 30, 2009 declined $4.1 million as the unfavorable effect of franchising was partially offset by 
margin improvements of 3.0%, as shown below.

Favorable
Six Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)

2009 2008 Variance
Food and beverage 26.1% 26.8% 0.7%
Labor 33.5% 35.2% 1.7%
Direct and occupancy 25.3% 25.9% 0.6%
Total Cost of Company Restaurant Sales (a) 84.8% 87.8% 3.0%

(a) Percentages may not add due to rounding.

Total food and beverage costs as a percentage of company restaurant sales decreased by 0.7% due primarily to the impact of menu price
increases and food cost improvement initiatives partially offset by slightly higher commodity costs.

Total labor costs as a percentage of company restaurant sales decreased by 1.7%. Labor expenses improved primarily due to the reduction in
management incentive expense due to nonrecurring retention costs in 2008 and lower incentive compensation in 2009, more effective utilization
of management and hourly staff, effective hourly wage rate management and favorable group insurance costs.

Direct and occupancy costs decreased as a percentage of company restaurant sales by 0.6% due primarily to the timing of local advertising
expenses, lower natural gas rates and favorable straight-line rent adjustments due to 2008 purchase price allocation adjustments offset by
unfavorable license expenses and insurance costs due to lower sales volumes.

The operating margin of 15.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2009 is not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the
year ending December 31, 2009. The revenue component of the margin calculation is subject to seasonality for two primary reasons: gift card

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

59



redemptions are historically at their highest level in the first quarter of any year and there are more holidays that dampen revenue in the second
half of the year. As a result, margins in the first half of our fiscal year are typically higher than in the second half. Additionally, we expect
advertising expenses will increase due to the timing of promotions during the rest of 2009. We expect the company restaurant operating margin
for the year ended December 31, 2009 will range between 13.5% and 14.5%.

Rental Operations

Favorable
Six Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Rental revenues $ 66.2 $ 65.5 $ 0.7
Rental expenses 48.8 49.3 0.5
Rental operations segment profit $ 17.4 $ 16.2 $ 1.2

Rental operations relate primarily to IHOP restaurants. Rental income includes revenue from operating leases, interest income from direct
financing leases and sales of reacquired franchises and equipment. Rental expenses are costs of prime operating leases and interest expense on
prime capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants.

Rental operations revenues increased by $0.7 million.  The increase was primarily due to the increase in IHOP franchise retail sales on which
rents are based. Rental operations profit increased by $1.2 million due to the revenue increase and a slight decline in depreciation and interest
expense.
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Financing Operations

Favorable
Six Months Ended June 30, (Unfavorable)
2009 2008 Variance

(In millions)
Financing revenues $ 8.4 $ 15.6 $ (7.2)
Financing expenses 0.3 5.9 5.6
Financing operations segment profit $ 8.1 $ 9.7 $ (1.6)

All of our financing operations relate to IHOP restaurants. Financing revenues and expenses decreased by $7.2 million and $5.6 million,
respectively.  Franchise and equipment note interest revenue declined $0.9 million due to the ongoing reduction in note balances. In addition,
there was minimal revenue or expense related to sales of one restaurant during the first six months of 2009 as compared with revenues and
expenses of $6.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively, in the first six months of 2008 related to the sale of nine restaurants.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by $15.7 million. Expense savings related to franchising of Applebee�s company-operated
restaurants, integration of Applebee�s and IHOP administrative functions, cost reduction initiatives implemented in 2009 and lower stock-based
compensation expense. Additionally, transition-related costs recorded 2008 did not recur. These favorable items were offset by $3.0 million of
development incentive credits related to the Applebee�s support center received in 2008 that also did not recur.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $7.8 million. The decrease was primarily due to the retirement of long-term debt over the past 12 months. Average
long-term obligations (long-term debt, capital lease obligations and financing obligations) declined to $2.30 billion for the six months ended
June 30, 2009 from $2.45 billion during the six months ended June 30, 2008. Additionally, the weighted average interest rate on variable debt
declined to approximately 3.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2009 from approximately 6.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2008.

Impairment and Closure Charges

Impairment and closure charges were $2.0 million for the six-month period ended June 30, 2009, comprised of net impairment charges of $1.9
million and closure charges of $0.1 million. The charges related primarily to leasehold improvements and related assets of one IHOP restaurant
closed during the period and an additional write-down to the estimated sales value, based on a current letter of intent, of one Applebee�s
restaurant that had been closed in a prior period and was included in assets held for sale.
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Impairment and closure charges were $41.4 million for the three-month period ended June 30, 2008, comprised of impairment charges of $41.2
million and closure charges of $0.2 million. In June 2008, the Company entered into sale-leaseback transactions on 181 parcels of real estate
comprising land, buildings and improvements. The net book value of the real estate exceeded the proceeds received by the amount of the
recorded charge for impairment. All of the parcels involved in the transactions had been acquired in the November 29, 2007 acquisition of
Applebee�s and their estimated fair value was assigned as part of the purchase price allocation as of that date. The Company evaluated events
subsequent to November 29, 2007 and noted a deterioration in both the domestic real estate and credit markets between the date of the purchase
price allocation and the June 2008 date of the sale-leaseback transactions. In the absence of objective evidence to the contrary, the Company
concluded that the estimated fair value of the real estate determined in purchase price allocation was reasonable and the decline in value related
primarily to market events subsequent to the acquisition date value necessitating an impairment charge as opposed to an adjustment to the
allocated purchase price.

Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company retired Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due
December 2037 with a face amount of $94.0 million and Series 2007-1 Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes due December 2037 with
a face amount of $35.2 million for cash payments totaling $85.4 million. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $38.8
million after the write-off of the discount and deferred financing costs related to the debt retired.
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Gain on Disposition of Assets

The Company recognized a gain on disposition of assets of $5.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009, primarily related to the
franchising of five Applebee�s restaurants in the New Mexico market completed in February 2009.

Other Income and Expense

Other expense was $0.1 million for the six-month period ended June 30, 2009 compared to other income of $1.7 million for the same period of
the prior year. The primary reason for the decrease is lower interest rates on lower balances of escrowed funds and certain restricted cash
accounts.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for the provision recognized was 31.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The effective tax rate is lower than the
federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to tax credits, partially offset by state income taxes. The tax credits are primarily FICA tip and other
compensation-related tax credits associated with Applebee�s company-owned restaurant operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Certain of our subsidiaries incurred approximately $2.3 billion of indebtedness in connection with our acquisition of Applebee�s in
November 2007. We have reduced the securitized indebtedness by approximately $525 million as of June 30, 2009. A significant portion of that
reduction was made with proceeds from sale-leaseback transactions that resulted in indebtedness reported as Financing Obligations in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, which balance (short and long term) was approximately $325 million as of June 30, 2009. The Company has
retired approximately $190 million of the securitized indebtedness as a result of dedicating a portion of excess cash flow towards opportunistic
debt retirement, proceeds generated from the sale of company-operated Applebee's restaurants, and scheduled payments on the Company's
subordinated notes, with approximately $130 million of the retirement taking place in 2009. However, the remaining indebtedness continues to
have a significant impact on the liquidity and capital resources of the Company. We expect to pay approximately $145 million to $155 million of
interest in cash for the year ended December 31, 2009, in addition to dividends of $19.3 million on Series A Preferred Stock that was also issued
in connection with the acquisition. This indebtedness limits our ability to obtain additional financing, due to explicit limitations in the Indenture
under which the indebtedness was issued.

As described in Note 10 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2008, the Fixed Rate Notes issued as part of the Applebee�s securitization transaction have a legal maturity of
December 2037; however, the Indenture under which the Notes were issued includes provisions which may require the early repayment, in
whole or in part, of the Notes which, if not met, would require the Company to use all or part of the excess cash flow that would otherwise be
available for general business purposes to fund a reserve account for the Notes or to begin to pay down the Notes. The accelerated payment date
for the Applebee�s Class A-2-II-A Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes, Class A-2-II-X Fixed Rate Term Senior Notes and Class M-1 Fixed Rate Term
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Subordinated Notes is December 2012. As of June 30, 2009, there was no early repayment date for the Notes triggered.

Debt Covenant Compliance

As part of the financing for the Applebee�s acquisition, certain subsidiaries of the Company completed two separate securitized debt offerings.
These transactions consisted of an issuance of debt collateralized by Applebee�s restaurant assets (the �Applebee�s Notes�) and a separate issuance
of debt collateralized by IHOP restaurant assets (the �IHOP Notes�). Previously, IHOP completed a $200 million securitized debt offering in
March 2007, which is subject to the same debt covenants as IHOP�s November 2007 securitization. This securitized debt is subject to a series of
covenants and restrictions which are customary for transactions of this type. As of June 30, 2009, approximately $1.8 billion of securitized debt
is subject to these covenants and restrictions.

The most significant covenants related to the securitized debt require the maintenance of a consolidated leverage ratio and certain debt service
coverage ratios. The consolidated leverage ratio is defined as the sum of: (i) all securitized debt (assuming all variable funding facilities are fully
drawn); (ii) all other debt of the Company; and (iii) current monthly operating lease expense multiplied by 96, that sum divided by the sum of:
(i) the Company�s EBITDA (as defined) for the preceding 12 months and (ii) annualized operating lease expense. Maximum ratios for this test
are as follows:

Applebee�s
Notes IHOP Notes

Through November 2009 7.75 x 7.5 x
Thereafter 7.25 x 7.0 x

Failure to remain under these maximums could result in required early amortization of outstanding principal amounts of the Applebee�s Notes or
IHOP Notes. At June 30, 2009, the Company�s consolidated leverage ratio was 5.95x. If the EBITDA component of the calculation had been
25.6% lower, the Company would have exceeded the maximum ratio allowed for the IHOP notes. The Company�s consolidated leverage ratio
was 6.8x at December 31, 2008.
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The formulas for calculating the debt service coverage ratios (�DSCR�) for each securitization are fairly complex with numerous defined terms. In
concept, DSCR is the ratio of restaurant net cash flow (as defined) divided by total debt service payments, which include, among other things,
interest payments, insurance premiums and administrative expenses. The minimum DSCR for the preceding three months is 1.85x. The
consequences of falling below specified minimum three-month DSCRs vary depending upon the actual ratio achieved. Three-month DSCRs
below 1.85x can trigger a Cash Trapping Event, a Rapid Amortization Event, or default as outlined in the table below. In a Cash Trapping Event
the indenture trustee for the affected securitization is required to retain a certain percentage of cash flow (after all required payments have been
made) in a restricted account. No principal amounts of debt are retired in a Cash Trapping Event. In a Rapid Amortization Event all excess cash
flow (after all required payments have been made) is retained and used to retire principal amounts of debt. These events are triggered as follows:

Applebee�s Notes IHOP Notes
Cash Trapping Event Less than 1.85x: 25%

of cash flow
Less than 1.85x:
40% of cash flow

Cash Trapping Event Less than 1.75x: 50%
of cash flow

Less than 1.65x:
80% of cash flow

Rapid Amortization Event Less than 1.5x Less than 1.5x
Default Event Less than 1.2x Less than 1.25x

There are also provisions for a one-time cure of either a Cash Trapping Event or a Rapid Amortization Event if the DSCR recovers to certain
levels for three consecutive payment dates. A Rapid Amortization Event can also be triggered in other defined circumstances unrelated to the
DSCR, including Applebee�s failure to maintain a minimum level of system-wide sales. At June 30, 2009, the Applebee�s three-month DSCR was
2.9x and the IHOP three-month DSCR was 3.4x. If the restaurant cash flow components of the calculation had been 36.0% and 45.8% lower for
purposes of the Applebee�s and IHOP calculations, respectively, the Company would have fallen below the 1.85x minimum threshold. At
December 31, 2008, the Applebee�s three-month DSCR was 2.0x and the IHOP three-month DSCR was 3.0x.

A second covenant test based on DSCR becomes effective under the Applebee�s Notes beginning with the fiscal quarter commencing
January 2010 and ending with the fiscal quarter commencing October 2012. This test is based on the same DSCR calculation described above
but covering the preceding 12-month period as opposed to the preceding three-month period. A 12-month DSCR below the time-period specific
minimum set forth below can trigger a Partial Amortization Event.  In a Partial Amortization Event, the indenture trustee for the Applebee�s
securitization is required to retain an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the sum of $5,583,000 plus the shortfall, if any, in the retained amount
from a preceding period under a Partial Amortization Event and (ii) the outstanding principal amount of the Applebee�s Notes plus the shortfall,
if any, from a preceding period under a Partial Amortization Event. All retained amounts are used to retire principal amounts of debt in order of
seniority. The minimum 12-month DSCR is 2.20x and increases by 5 basis points each quarter, as follows:

Fiscal Quarter
Commencing in:

Minimum Twelve-
Month DCSR

January 2010 2.20 x
April 2010 2.25 x
July 2010 2.30 x
October 2010 2.35 x
January 2011 2.40 x
April 2011 2.45 x
July 2011 2.50 x
October 2011 2.55 x
January 2012 2.60 x
April 2012 2.65 x
July 2012 2.70 x
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October 2012 2.75 x

The test of Applebee�s 12-month DSCR set forth above is not required until the payment date occurring in January 2010 and will end with the
payment date occurring in December 2012. If this test was currently required, the Applebee�s 12-month DSCR as of June 30, 2009 was 2.78x.

Franchising of Applebee�s Company-Operated Restaurants

Another impact of the Applebee�s acquisition on our liquidity is the planned monetization of certain Applebee�s assets. We are currently pursuing
a strategy which contemplates transitioning from our current 80% franchised Applebee�s system to an approximately 98% franchised Applebee�s
system, similar to IHOP�s 99% franchised system. In order to accomplish this strategy, we
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plan to franchise substantially all of the company-operated Applebee�s restaurants while retaining one company market in the Kansas City area.
This heavily franchised business model is expected to require less capital investment and reduce the volatility of cash flow performance over
time, while also providing cash proceeds from the franchising of the restaurants. If our strategy to transition to a 98% franchised system is
delayed or suspended, or sales proceeds from franchising restaurants are less than anticipated, we believe that the company-operated Applebee�s
restaurants will continue to generate sufficient cash from operations to meet our obligations, such that we will not be compelled to franchise
Applebee�s company-operated restaurants at prices lower than we deem appropriate. Under the terms of the securitized debt agreements, all of
the cash proceeds of asset dispositions must be used to retire long-term debt on a pro-rata basis.

There were no company-operated Applebee�s restaurants franchised during the three months ended June 30, 2009. For the six months ended
June 30, 2009, proceeds from all asset sales, including five Applebee�s company-operated restaurants in the New Mexico market franchised
during the first fiscal quarter of 2009, were $11.3 million. In July 2009, the sale of the remaining two restaurants in the New Mexico market
closed with proceeds received of approximately $5.0 million.

Credit Facilities

Applebee�s has a $100 million revolving credit facility, the Series 2007-1 Class A-1 Variable Funding Senior Notes (the �Applebee�s VFN�). IHOP
has a $25 million revolving credit facility, the Series 2007-2 Variable Funding Note, committed to by Calyon Americas (the �IHOP VFN�).
During the second quarter of 2009, the Company borrowed $10 million under the IHOP VFN. At June 30, 2009, both revolving credit facilities
have been fully utilized.

As disclosed in our Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2008, the Company borrowed $35 million under the Applebee�s VFN
because of uncertainty as to our ability to continue to access the funds that was created by the September 2008 bankruptcy filing of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc., the committed lender under the Applebee�s VFN. This brought our total borrowings to the maximum of $100 million,
which amount was outstanding at June 30, 2009. The $35 million has been used to purchase money market funds that are invested in U.S.
government securities. The money market funds are considered cash equivalents. While there are no formal restrictions on the use of these
funds, the Company�s present intent is to hold them in reserve, effectively serving as an additional source of liquidity should the need arise, in
lieu of seeking additional credit facilities.

The payments on the variable funding notes and certain of the term notes issued in connection with the Applebee�s acquisition are insured under
a financial guaranty insurance policy. If the insurance company were to become subject to insolvency or similar proceedings, an event of default
would occur under the indenture pursuant to which the notes were issued, and the holders of the variable funding notes would no longer be
required to fund draws on the facility. We have no reason to question the solvency of the insurance company that insures these payments, and its
senior unsecured debt obligations are highly rated at the current time.

Our ability to pay the interest on our indebtedness, to make scheduled payments of principal and to fund planned capital expenditures will
depend on future performance of our operations, which, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative,
regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. Based upon the current level of operations and our current expectations for future
periods in light of the current economic environment, we presently anticipate that our cash and cash equivalents, which totalled $80.4 million as
of June 30, 2009, together with expected cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for working
capital, retirement of securitized debt, capital expenditures and other obligations for at least the next 12 months. Further, based on current
projections we believe that we will remain in compliance with the debt covenants discussed above for at least the next 12 months. However, if
we are not able to achieve forecasted revenue targets and operating improvements, this assessment would have to be reconsidered. Additionally,

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

67



certain Applebee�s Notes have accelerated payment dates of December 2012, and we will likely seek to refinance this debt if it has not been
repaid prior to then. We may not be able to effect any future refinancing of our debt on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

In the event that we are unable to refinance the Applebee�s securitization debt by December 2012, then Applebee�s will have the ability to extend
the scheduled payment date for six months. The interest rate on the Applebee�s securitization debt will increase by 0.50%, and any unpaid
amount will accrue interest at such increased rate.

Similarly, if we are unable to refinance the Series 2007-3 IHOP securitization debt by December 2012, then IHOP will have the ability to extend
the scheduled repayment date for six months. The interest rate on the Series 2007-3 IHOP securitization debt will increase by 0.50%, and any
unpaid amount will accrue interest at such increased rate. Further, if we are unable to refinance the Series 2007-1 IHOP securitization debt by
March 2012, then IHOP will have the ability to extend the scheduled repayment date for up to two years with a 0.25% annual increase in the
interest rate each year.

Prior to the expiration of such extension periods, we may seek to renegotiate the terms applicable to the repayment of principal under the
relevant securitization program, raise capital or otherwise explore alternative measures to repay the securitization debt.  In the event that we are
unable to refinance the Applebee�s or the IHOP securitization debt upon the expiration of the relevant
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extension period, a Rapid Amortization Event will occur under the applicable securitization program and funds will be deposited in the principal
payment account for that program and used to repay principal of the applicable securitization debt.

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities is primarily driven by revenues earned and collected from our franchisees, operating earnings from our
company-operated restaurants and profit from our rental operations and financing operations. Franchise revenues consist of royalties, IHOP
advertising fees and sales of proprietary products for IHOP which fluctuate with increases or decreases in franchise retail sales. Franchise retail
sales are impacted by the development of IHOP and Applebee�s restaurants by our franchisees and by fluctuations in same-store sales. Operating
earnings from company-operated restaurants are impacted by many factors which include but are not limited to changes in traffic patterns,
pricing activities and changes in operating expenses. Rental operations profit is rental income less rental expenses. Rental income includes
revenues from operating leases and interest income from direct financing leases. Rental expenses are costs of prime operating leases and interest
expense on prime capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants. Financing operations revenue consists of the portion of franchise fees not
allocated to IHOP intellectual property, sales of equipment, as well as interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases.
Financing expenses are primarily the cost of restaurant equipment.

Cash provided by operating activities increased to $61.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2009 from $56.8 million in the same
period in 2008, primarily due to an increase in net income of $67.5 million, partially offset by a decrease of $45.8 million in noncash
adjustments (such as depreciation, impairment charges, gain on debt extinguishment and deferred taxes). The increase was primarily due to
reductions in interest and general and administrative expenses.  Additionally, changes in working capital used cash of $20.6 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2009 compared to a $3.6 million use of working capital in 2008.  The increase was due primarily to the timing of
payments for advertising and retention bonuses. Another factor that impacts cash used or provided by working capital is the sale of gift cards.
The revenue from gift cards is recognized as the card is redeemed, but cash, in most cases, has been received at the time of purchase, or shortly
thereafter. In any given period, the timing of sales and redemptions of gift cards can either generate or use working capital.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities of $15.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2009 was primarily attributable to $11.3 million
in proceeds from sales of property and equipment primarily related to the sale of five Applebee�s company-operated restaurants and $8.2 million
in principal receipts from notes and equipment contracts receivable, partially offset by $5.9 million in capital expenditures. The Company
currently estimates that capital expenditures for fiscal 2009 will range from $13 million to $16 million. As discussed in Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, in July 2009 the Company received proceeds of approximately $5 million from the sale of two Applebee�s
company-operated restaurants. The Company does not presently anticipate a significant amount of proceeds from additional sales of assets
during the remainder of fiscal 2009.

Financing Activities

Financing activities used net cash of $111.0 million during the six months ended June 30, 2009. Cash used in financing activities primarily
consisted of $101.7 million in repayments of long-term debt, payment of accrued debt issuance costs of $20.0 million, capital lease obligation
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and financing obligation repayments of $7.0 million and $9.5 million in dividend payments on Series A Preferred Stock. Of the long-term debt
repayments, approximately $85.4 million was the early retirement of securitzation debt with excess cash, $7.5 million was scheduled repayments
and $8.8 million related to redemptions with proceeds of asset dispositions and other items as required under the securitization agreements. Cash
provided by financing activities comprised a decrease of $17.3 million in restricted cash related to the securitizations and a borrowing of $10.0
million from a revolving credit facility.

Dividends

We have accrued $4.75 million as dividends for the Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock as of June 30, 2009, included in other accrued expenses
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The dividends were paid June 30, 2009, the second day of our fiscal third quarter. The accreted value of the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock increased by $1.1 million during the six months ended June 30, 2009.

In December 2008, the Board of Directors suspended the payment of the quarterly cash dividend to common stockholders for the foreseeable
future as part of actions the Company is taking to maximize its financial flexibility. Future dividend declarations on the common shares may be
made at the discretion of the Board of Directors after consideration of the Company�s earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, future
prospects and other factors.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
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reported amounts of net revenues and expenses in the reporting period. We base our estimates and assumptions on current facts, historical
experience and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of costs and expenses that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Accounting assumptions and estimates are inherently uncertain and actual results may differ materially from our estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting policies require us to make significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements:

Purchase Price Allocation

The purchase price for acquisitions is allocated to the identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
respective fair values in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 141, Business Combinations (�SFAS 141�).
The determination of estimated fair values of identifiable intangible assets and certain tangible assets requires significant estimates and
assumptions, including but not limited to, determining the estimated future cash flows, estimated useful lives of assets and appropriate discount
rates. We believe the estimated fair values assigned to the Applebee�s assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on reasonable
assumptions. However, the fair value estimates for the purchase price allocation may change during the allowable allocation period under
SFAS 141, which is up to one year from the acquisition date, if additional information becomes available that would require changes to our
estimates.

Long-Lived Assets

We assess long-lived and intangible assets with finite lives for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of the assets may not be recoverable. We test impairment using historical cash flows and other relevant facts and circumstances as the
primary basis for our estimates of future cash flows. We consider factors such as the number of years the restaurant has been operated by us,
sales trends, cash flow trends, remaining lease life, and other factors which apply on a case-by-case basis. The analysis is performed at the
individual restaurant level for indicators of permanent impairment. Recoverability of the restaurant�s assets is measured by comparing the assets�
carrying value to the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated over the assets� remaining useful life or remaining lease term, whichever
is less. If the total expected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets, the carrying amount is written down
to the estimated fair value, and a loss resulting from impairment is recognized by charging to earnings. This process requires the use of estimates
and assumptions, which are subject to a high degree of judgment. If these assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record
impairment charges for these assets.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is recorded when the aggregate purchase price of an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the net identified tangible and
intangible assets acquired. Intangible assets resulting from the acquisition are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and are
estimated by management based on the fair value of the assets received. Identifiable intangible assets are comprised primarily of trademarks,
trade names and franchise agreements. Identifiable assets are being amortized over the period of estimated benefit using the straight-line method
and estimated useful lives. Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are not subject to amortization.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (�SFAS 142�), goodwill has been allocated to three reporting units, the
IHOP franchised restaurants unit (�IHOP unit�), Applebee�s company-operated restaurants unit (�Applebee�s company unit�) and Applebee�s
franchised restaurants unit (�Applebee�s franchise unit�). The significant majority of the Company�s goodwill resulted from the November 29, 2007
acquisition of Applebee�s and has been allocated between the two Applebee�s units. The Company tests goodwill and other indefinite life
intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis in the fourth quarter. The impairment test of goodwill of the two Applebee�s units was
performed as of October 31, 2008. The impairment test of the goodwill of the IHOP unit was performed as of December 31, 2008, the date as of
which the analysis has been performed in prior years. In addition to the annual test of impairment, goodwill must be evaluated more frequently if
the Company believes indicators of impairment exist. Such indicators include, but are not limited to, events or circumstances such as a
significant adverse change in the business climate, unanticipated competition, a loss of key personnel, adverse legal or regulatory developments,
or a significant decline in the market price of the Company�s common stock. The Company has evaluated the events and circumstances that took
place during the six months ended June 30, 2009 and noted, among other things, that the same-store sales performance of IHOP and Applebee�s
restaurants is within the range of expectations for 2009 and that the Company�s stock price has increased significantly since December 31, 2008.
The Company took impairment writedowns on two properties in the second quarter of 2009. One property was a closed Applebee�s facility held
for sale. These impairments were evaluated and neither was considered a potential indicator of impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets.
The Company noted no other indicators of impairment. Based on the evaluation, the Company has concluded that an interim test of goodwill for
impairment is not required as of June 30, 2009.

In the process of the Company�s annual impairment review, the Company primarily uses the income approach method of valuation that includes
the discounted cash flow method as well as other generally accepted valuation methodologies to determine the fair value of our intangible assets.
Significant assumptions used to determine fair value under the discounted cash flows model include future trends in sales, operating expenses,
overhead expenses, depreciation, capital expenditures, and changes in working capital along
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with an appropriate discount rate. Additional assumptions are made as to proceeds to be received from future franchising of company-operated
restaurants. Step one of the impairment test compares the fair value of each of our reporting units to its carrying value. If the fair value is in
excess of the carrying value, no impairment exists. If the step one test does indicate an impairment, step two must take place. Under step two, the
fair value of the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit are estimated as if the reporting unit were acquired in a business combination. The
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the carrying amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the
goodwill, to which the carrying value of the goodwill must be adjusted. The fair value of all reporting units is then compared to the current
market value of the Company�s common stock to determine if the fair values estimated in the impairment testing process are reasonable in light
of the current market value.

Leases

Our restaurants are located on (i) sites owned by us, (ii) sites leased by us from third parties and (iii) sites owned or leased by franchisees. At the
inception of the lease, each property is evaluated to determine whether the lease will be accounted for as an operating or capital lease in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases (�SFAS 13�) and subsequent
amendments.

The lease term used for straight-line rent expense is calculated from the date we obtain possession of the leased premises through the lease
termination date. Prior to January 2, 2006, we capitalized rent expense from possession date through construction completion and reported the
related asset in property and equipment. Capitalized rent was amortized through depreciation and amortization expense over the estimated useful
life of the related assets limited to the lease term. Straight-line rent recorded during the preopening period (construction completion through
restaurant open date) was recorded as expense. Commencing January 2, 2006, we expense rent from possession date through restaurant open
date, in accordance with FASB Staff Position No. 13-1, Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period. Once a restaurant
opens for business, we record straight-line rent over the lease term plus contingent rent to the extent it exceeded the minimum rent obligation per
the lease agreement. We use a consistent lease term when calculating depreciation of leasehold improvements, when determining straight-line
rent expense and when determining classification of our leases as either operating or capital.

There is potential for variability in the rent holiday period, which begins on the possession date and ends on the restaurant open date, during
which no cash rent payments are typically due under the terms of the lease. Factors that may affect the length of the rent holiday period generally
relate to construction related delays. Extension of the rent holiday period due to delays in restaurant opening will result in greater preopening
rent expense recognized during the rent holiday period and lesser occupancy expense during the rest of the lease term (post-opening).

For leases that contain rent escalations, we record the total rent payable during the lease term, as determined above, on the straight-line basis
over the term of the lease (including the rent holiday period beginning upon our possession of the premises), and record the difference between
the minimum rents paid and the straight-line rent as a lease obligation. Certain leases contain provisions that require additional rental payments
based upon restaurant sales volume (�contingent rent�). Contingent rentals are accrued each period as the liabilities are incurred, in addition to the
straight-line rent expense noted above.

Certain of our lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances. For purposes of recognizing incentives, we amortize the incentives over
the shorter of the estimated useful life or lease term. For tenant improvement allowances, we also record a deferred rent liability or an obligation
in our non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Management makes judgments regarding the probable term for each restaurant property lease, which can impact the classification and
accounting for a lease as capital or operating, the rent holiday and/or escalations in payment that are taken into consideration when calculating
straight-line rent and the term over which leasehold improvements for each restaurant are amortized. These judgments may produce materially
different amounts of depreciation, amortization and rent expense than would be reported if different assumed lease terms were used.

Insurance Reserves

We use estimates in the determination of the appropriate liabilities for general liability, workers� compensation and health insurance. The
estimated liability is established based upon historical claims data and third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred claims.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may require us to revise our estimates. We periodically reassess our assumptions and judgments and
make adjustments when significant facts and circumstances dictate. A change in any of the above estimates could impact our consolidated
statements of earnings, and the related asset or liability recorded in our consolidated balance sheets would be adjusted accordingly. Historically,
actual results have not been materially different than the estimates that are described above.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (�SFAS 123(R)�).
Accordingly, we measure stock-based compensation expense at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and recognize the expense
over the employee�s requisite service period using the straight-line method. Under SFAS 123(R), the fair
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value of each employee stock option and restricted stock award is estimated on the date of grant using an option pricing model that meets certain
requirements. We currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of our share-based compensation. The
Black-Scholes model meets the requirements of SFAS 123(R). The measurement of stock-based compensation expense is based on several
criteria including, but not limited to, the valuation model used and associated input factors, such as expected term of the award, stock price
volatility, risk free interest rate and forfeiture rate. These inputs are subjective and are determined using management�s judgment. If differences
arise between the assumptions used in determining stock-based compensation expense and the actual factors which become known over time, we
may change the input factors used in determining future stock-based compensation expense. Any such changes could materially impact our
operations in the period in which the changes are made and in subsequent periods.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business we utilize derivative instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate risks. We account for our derivative
instruments under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The standard requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance
sheet at fair value and establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of the hedging relationships.

We use derivative financial instruments primarily for purposes of hedging exposures to fluctuations in interest rates. All derivatives are
recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge (i.e., hedging the
exposure to variability in expected future cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income or loss and reclassified into earnings in the same line item
associated with the forecasted transaction in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings (for example, in
�interest expense� when the hedged transactions are interest cash flows associated with debt). The remaining gain or loss on the derivative
instrument in excess of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, is recognized in other
income/expense in current earnings during the period of change.

At inception of the hedge, we choose the Hypothetical Derivative Method of effectiveness calculation, which we must use for the life of the
contract and we will measure effectiveness quarterly. When hedge treatment is achieved under SFAS 133, the changes in fair values related to
the effective portion of the derivatives are recorded in other comprehensive income or loss or in income/expense, depending on the designation
of the derivative as a cash flow hedge. We obtain the values on a quarterly basis from the counterparty of the derivative contracts. The
undesignated portion of the derivative contract is calculated and recorded in Company�s Consolidated Statements of Operations at the end of each
quarter until settled.

Fair Value Measurements

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company determines the fair market values of its financial assets and liabilities, as well as non-financial assets
and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis, based on the fair value hierarchy established in SFAS No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (�SFAS No. 157�). We measure our financial assets and liabilities using inputs from the following three levels of the
fair value hierarchy. The three levels are as follows:
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• Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access at the
measurement date.

• Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (i.e., interest rates, yield
curves, etc.), and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means (market
corroborated inputs).

• Level 3 includes unobservable inputs that reflect our assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability. We develop these inputs based on the best information available, including our own data.

For more information on the financial instruments the Company measures at fair value, see Note 13, Fair Value Measurements.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes based on our estimate of federal and state income tax liabilities. Our annual tax rate is based on our income,
statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Tax laws are complex and
subject to different interpretations by the taxpayers and respective governmental authorities. Significant judgment is required in determining our
tax expense and in evaluating our tax positions. We review our tax positions quarterly and adjust the balances as new information becomes
available.
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We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the financial reporting
basis and the tax basis of recorded assets and liabilities. Deferred tax accounting requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portions or all of the net deferred tax assets will not be realized. This test requires projection of
our taxable income into future years to determine if there will be taxable income sufficient to realize the tax assets. The preparation of the
projections requires considerable judgment and is subject to change to reflect future events and changes in the tax laws. When we establish or
reduce the valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, our income tax expense will increase or decrease, respectively, in the period such
determination is made.

Tax contingency reserves result from our estimates of potential liabilities resulting from differences between actual and audited results. We
usually file our income tax returns several months after our fiscal year end. All tax returns are subject to audit by federal and state governments,
usually years after the returns are filed, and could be subject to differing interpretation of the tax laws. Changes in the tax contingency reserves
result from resolution of audits of prior year filings, the expiration of the statute of limitations, changes in tax laws and current year estimates for
asserted and unasserted items. Inherent uncertainties exist in estimates of tax contingencies due to changes in tax law, both legislated and
concluded through the various jurisdictions� tax court systems. Significant changes in our estimates could materially affect our reported results.

Under FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (�FIN 48�), tax
positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period
in which that threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not threshold should be
derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no longer met. We are subject to taxation in many
jurisdictions, and the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws and regulations
in various tax jurisdictions. The application is subject to legal and factual interpretation, judgment and uncertainty. Tax laws and regulations
themselves are subject to change as a result of changes in fiscal policy, changes in legislation, the evolution of regulations and court rulings.
Therefore, the actual liability for taxes may be materially different from our estimates, which could result in the need to record additional tax
liabilities or to reverse previously recorded tax liabilities.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (�SFAS 157�). In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement
No. 157, which delayed for one year the applicability of SFAS 157�s fair-value measurements to certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. The
Company adopted the requirements of SFAS 157 that had been deferred under FSP 157-2 on January 1, 2009. The adoption did not have a
material impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (�SFAS 141(R)�). SFAS 141(R) establishes principles
and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SFAS 141(R) also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the
evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company adopted SFAS 141(R) on January 1, 2009 and will apply the provisions of this statement prospectively.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (�SFAS 161�). This statement
requires companies to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why they use derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and its related
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interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company�s financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows. The Company adopted the new disclosure requirements on January 1, 2009. As SFAS 161 does not change current accounting
practice, there was no impact of the adoption to the Company�s results of operations and financial condition..

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets (�FSP FAS 142-3�). FSP FAS 142-3
amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (�SFAS 142�). The intent of FSP FAS 142-3 is to improve the
consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the
fair value of the asset under SFAS 141(R) and other applicable accounting literature. The Company adopted FSP FAS 142-3 on January 1, 2009
and will apply the provisions of this statement prospectively to intangible assets acquired after the effective date.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF Issue No. 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions
Are Participating Securities (�FSP EITF 03-6-1�). FSP EITF 03-6-1 requires unvested share-based payment awards that contain rights to receive
non-forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents to be included in the two-class method of computing earnings per share as described in SFAS
No. 128, Earnings per Share. The Company retroactively adopted FSP EITF 03-
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6-1 on January 1, 2009. The impact of the adoption on earnings per share as previously reported for the three- and six-month periods ended
June 30, 2008 was not material.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, and FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, to address concerns
regarding (1) determining whether a market is not active and a transaction is not orderly, (2) recognition and presentation of
other-than-temporary impairments and (3) interim disclosures of fair values of financial instruments, respectively. The FSPs will be effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. The Company
adopted these FSPs effective April 1, 2009. There was no impact of the adoption on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (�SFAS 165�). SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting for and
disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. The Company
adopted SFAS 165 effective April 1, 2009. There was no impact of the adoption on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140 (�SFAS
166�). SFAS 166clarifies that the objective of paragraph 9 of Statement 140 is to determine whether a transferor and all of the entities included
in the transferor�s financial statements being presented have surrendered control over transferred financial assets; limits the circumstances in
which a financial asset, or portion of a financial asset, should be derecognized when the transferor has not transferred the entire original financial
asset to an entity that is not consolidated with the transferor in the financial statements being presented and/or when the transferor has continuing
involvement with the transferred financial asset; and removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity. The Company will be required
to adopt SFAS 166 effective January 1, 2010, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of SFAS 166 on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) (�SFAS 167�). SFAS 167 amends existing U.S.
GAAP with respect to the consolidation of variable interest entities (�VIEs�). Among other things, SFAS 167 (i) amends existing guidance for
determining whether an entity is a VIE; (ii) requires ongoing reassessments of whether an entity is the primary beneficiary of a VIE; and
(iii) requires enhanced disclosures about an entity�s involvement in a VIE.The Company will be required to adopt SFAS 167 effective January 1,
2010, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of SFAS 167 on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009 the FASB issued statement No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.  This statement replaces Statement No.162 and establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification� (Codification)
as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under
authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants.  All guidance contained in the Codification
carries an equal level of authority.  This statement becomes effective for the Company for the third fiscal quarter of 2009.  The Company does
not expect that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on the Company�s financial statements.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
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There were no material changes from the information contained in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2008.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

The Company�s management, with the participation of the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the
Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company�s disclosure
controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.

Part II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

We are subject from time to time to lawsuits, claims and governmental inspections or audits arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of
these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial damages. In the opinion of management, these matters are adequately covered
by insurance or, if not so covered, are without merit or are of such a nature or involve amounts that would not have a material adverse impact on
our business or consolidated financial position.

Gerald Fast v. Applebee�s

The Company is currently defending a collective action filed under the Fair Labor Standards Act styled Gerald Fast v. Applebee�s
International, Inc., in which named plaintiffs claim that tipped workers in company restaurants perform excessive amounts of non-tipped work
for which they should be compensated at the minimum wage.  The court has conditionally certified a nationwide class of servers and bartenders
who have worked in company-operated Applebee�s restaurants since June 19, 2004.  Unlike a class action, a collective action requires potential
class members to �opt in� rather than �opt out.�  On February 12, 2008, 5,540 opt-in forms were filed with the court.

In cases of this type, conditional certification of the plaintiff class is granted under a lenient standard.  On January 15, 2009, the Company filed a
motion seeking to have the class de-certified and the plaintiffs filed a motion for summary judgment, both of which are pending before the court.
 The Company believes it has strong defenses supporting the de-certification of the class, as well as strong defenses to the substantive claims
asserted, and intends to vigorously defend this case.  Trial is currently set for September 8, 2009, in Jefferson City, Missouri. An estimate of the
possible loss, if any, or the range of the loss cannot be made and, therefore, the Company has not accrued a loss contingency related to this
matter.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

There were no material changes from the information contained in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2008.

Edgar Filing: DineEquity, Inc - Form 10-Q

81



Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(a) - (c) Not applicable.

Item 3.  Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the �Meeting�) was held on May 12, 2009. Stockholders voted in person or by proxy for the following
purposes:

(i)     Stockholders voted to elect the following directors, by the votes indicated:

Votes For
Votes Against or

Withheld
H. Fredrick Christie 16,115,089 173,991
Richard J. Dahl 16,194,652 94,428
Patrick W. Rose 15,819,959 469,121

The following directors continued in office after the Meeting: Frank Edelstein, Gilbert T. Ray, Caroline Nahas, Howard Berk, Michael S.
Gordon, Larry Alan Kay and Julia A. Stewart.

(ii)   Stockholders voted to approve and ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, as the Company�s independent registered public
accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2009. 16,266,453 shares were voted in favor of this proposal, 18,137 shares were voted
against, there were 4,356 abstentions, and 134 broker non-votes.
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Item 5.  Other Information.

None.
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Item 6.  Exhibits.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of DineEquity, Inc. (Exhibit 3.1 to DineEquity, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed June 2, 2008 is incorporated
herein by reference).

3.2 Amended Bylaws of DineEquity, Inc. (Exhibit 3.2 to DineEquity, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed June 2, 2008 is incorporated herein by
reference).

10.1 Employment Agreement between DineEquity, Inc. and Jean Birch dated June 22, 2009.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DineEquity, Inc.
(Registrant)

July 30, 2009 BY: /s/ JULIA A. STEWART
(Date) Julia A. Stewart

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

July 30, 2009 /s/ JOHN F. TIERNEY
(Date) John F. Tierney

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

July 30, 2009 /s/ GREGGORY KALVIN
(Date) Greggory Kalvin

Vice President, Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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